
I

lncorporated Village of FreePoÉ, New York

Financial Statements and
Supplementary I nformation

Year Ended February 28,2015





lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Table of Contents

lndependent Auditors' Report

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Basic Financial Statements
Government-Wide Financial Statements

Statement of Net Position
Statement of Activities

Fund Financial Statements
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the

Government-Wide Statement of Net Position
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -

Governmental Funds
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual - General Fund
Proprietary Funds

Statement of Net Position
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Assets and Liabilities - Fiduciary Fund
Notes to Financial Statements

Required Supplementary lnformatíon
Other Post Employment Benefits

Schedule of Funding Progress - Last Three FiscalYears

Combining and lndividual Fund FinancialStatements and Schedules

Major Governmental Funds
General Fund

Balance Sheet
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and Actual
Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Compared to Budget
Schedule of Expenditures and Other Financing Uses Compared to Budget

Capital Projects Fund
Balance Sheet
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Propríetary Funds
Enterprise Funds

Combining Statement of Net Position
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Paqe No.

1

3

16
17

72
73
74

19

20

21

22

23

24
25
26
27
28

60

61

62
63
66

70
71



lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Table ôf Côntênts lConcludedì

Paoe No.

Electric Fund
Statement of Net Position
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Statement of Cash Flows

75
76
77



e PKI
crcoNNoR
DAVIES
ACCOUNTANTS ANÐ ADVISORS

lndependent Auditors' Report

The Honorable Mayor and Board of Trustees
of the Incorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type

activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the lncorporated Village of

Freeport, New York ("Village") as of and for the year ended February 28,2015, and the related notes to the

financial statements, which collectively comprise the Village's basic financial statements as listed in the table

of contents.

M a n a g e m en f 's Resp o n s i b i I i ty fo r th e F i n a n c i a I Sfafemen Ús

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the

design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation

of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

A u d ito rs' Respo n si bi I ity

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our

audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. ln making

those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal

control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,

as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opínions.

Basis for Adverse Opínion on the Discretely Presented Component Unit

The financial statements do not include financial data for the Village's legally separate component unit, the

Village of Freeport Community Development Agency. Accounting principles generally accepted ín the United

States of America require the financial data for that component unit to be reported with the financial data of

the Village's primary government. The effect of this departure on the assets, liabilities, net position, revenues

and expenses is not known since audited financial statements are not available.

PKF O'CONNOR DAVIES, LLP
500MamaroneckAvenue,Harrison,NYl052B lTel: 914.381.8900 lFax:914.381.8910 lwww.pkfod.com

PKF O'Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF lntemat¡onal Limited network of legally independent f¡rms and does not accept any responsibi¡ity or
liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any othêr individual member firm or firms.



Adverse Opinion - Discretely Presented Component Unit

ln our opinion, because of the significance of the matter discussed in the "Basis for Adverse Opinion on the
Discretely Presented Component Unit" paragraph, the financial statements referred to above do not present

fairly, the financial position of the discretely presented component unit of the Village, as of February 28,2015,
or the changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Unmodified Opinions - Primary Government

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Village, as of February 28,2015, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows, thereof, and the respective budgetary comparison for the
General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matters

Req u i red S u pplementa ry I nformation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management's
Discussion and Analysis and the Schedule of Funding Progress - Other Post Employment Benefits be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an

essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which* consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an

opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Su pplementary and Other I nformation

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Village's basic financial statements. The combining and individualfund financial statements and
schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of management
and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such lnformatlon dlrectly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financíal statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. ln our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

pKF û,(rann bûrr*, Up
PKF O'Gonnor Davies, LLP
Harrison, New York
February 12,2016
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lncorporated Village Of Freeport, New York

Management Discussion And Analysis
February 28,2015

As management of the lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York ("Village" or ''primary

government"), we offer readers of the financial statements this narrative overview and analysis
óf tne financial activities for the year ended February 28, 2015. Please read it in conjunction
with the Village's financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The combined liabilities of the Village exceeded its assets and deferred outflows of

resources by $38,901,465 at February 28, 2015 (net of prior period adjustments, see

Note 2D), of which $1,074,904 was related to an increase in governmental activities and

9757,014 was related to an increase in the business-type activities. The Village's total
combined net position increased by $1,831,918. The most notable factor contributing to

this overall increase in net position is the decrease in accounts payable and other
current liabilities.

a

As of February 28, 2015, the Village's governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $8,006,636, Of this amount, $2,277,036 is not in spendable form or is
legally or contractually required to remain intact. Restricted for debt service
requirements such as tax certioraris and general liability claims and/or capital
improvements equates to $2,184,900. ln spendable form and assigned for specific
purposes is $51,908. The remaining $3,492,792 is unassigned and currently available
for spending. See Note 3J.

At year end, the Village's total fund balance for the General Fund was $8,536,963, an

increase of $1,428,897 from the prior year. The unassigned fund balance for the
General Fund is $5,726,180.

fhe Village's total bonded debt (inclusive of general obligation bonds and bond

anticipation notes (BAN's)) accounted for as longterm debt was $124,128,000, of which

$57,488,643 relates to governmental activities and $66,639,357 relates to business{ype
activities. There was a decrease in bonded debt in the amount of $6,526,307.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Village's basic
financial statements, The Village's basic financial statements are comprised of the following: 1)

government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements and 3) notes to basic
financial statements. This report also contains supplementary information in addition to the

basic financial statements themselves.

o

a

o
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lncorporated Village Of Freeport, New York

Management Discussion And Analysis
February 28,2Q15

COMPONENTS OF
THE ANNUAL FINANICAL REPORT

Requìred
Supplementary

lnformation

Summary Detail

Government-wide Fi nancial Statements

The governmenþwide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a þroad

overview of the Village's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The intent
of the government-wide financial statements is to give the reader a long-term view of the
Village's financial condition.

The Statement of Net Position presents financial information on all of the Village's assets and

liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. This combines and

consolidates the Village's current financial resources with capital assets and longterm
obligations. The purpose of this statement is to give the reader an understanding of the
Village's total net worth. Over time, increases or decreases in the Village's net position is one

indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider
other nonfinancial factors, however, such as changes in the Village's property tax base and the
condition of the Village's buildings, roads, drainage and other assets to assess the overall
health of the Village.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Village's net position changed
during the most recent year. Revenues and expenses are reported by activity to give the reader
an understanding of how each of the Village's activities is being supported. All changes in net
position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,

regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future periods. This method is

known as the accrual basis of accounting and is different from the modified accrual basis of
accounting used in the Village's fund finaneial statements.

The Village's government-wide financial statements include both the governmental and

business{ype activities of the Village. However, it's discretely presented component unit, the
Freeport Community Development Agency, has not been included.

Each of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Village that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user
fees and charges (business-type activities).

4
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lncorporated Village Of Freeport, New York

Management Discussion And Analysis
February 28,2015

Certain amounts presented in the prior year may have been reclassified in order to be
consistent with the current year's presentation.

Governmentat Activities - The Village's basic services are reported here, including: general
government support; public safety; transportation; economic assistance and opportunity; culture
and recreation and home and community services. Property taxes, mortgage taxes, payments
in lieu of taxes, sales taxes, franchise fees, fines, and state and federal grants finance these
activities. The Village also charges fees to customers to help it cover the cost of certain
services it provides.

Business-Type Activities - The Village charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most of
the cost of certain services it provides. The Village's water and electrlc activities are reported
here.

Component Unit - Component units are legally separate organizations for which the Village is

either financially accountable, or the nature and significance of their relationship with the Village
is such that exclusion would cause the Village's financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete. As previously stated, the Village of Freeport Community Development Agency, a

discretely presented component unit has been omitted from the government-wide financial
statements. Refer to Note 1A and 2E of notes to financial statements.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements focus on current available resources and are organized and
operated on the basis of funds, each of which is defined as an accounting entity with a self-
balancing set of accounts established for the purpose of carrying on specific or attaining certain
objectives in accordance with special regulations, restriction or limitations. The Village, like other
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. All of the funds of the Village can be divided into three categories:
governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds

The Village's activities are reported in governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to
account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the
year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financial
requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long{erm effect of the Village's near term
financial decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and change in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

5



lncorporated Village Of Freeport, New York

Management Discussion And Analysis
February 28,2015

The Village maintains two individual major governmental funds. lnformation is presented

separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of

revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund and Capital Project
Fund.

The Village adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund, Budgetary comparison
statements have been provided for the General Fund within the basic financial statements to
demonstrate compliance with the respective budget.

The governmental fund financial statements can be found in the "Basic Financial Statements"
section of this report.

Proprietarv Funds

The Village maintains proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The Village

uses enterprise funds to account for its Water and Electric Funds.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate
information for the Water and Electric Funds since all are considered to be major funds of the

Village. The proprietary fund financial statements can be found in the "Basic Financial

Statements" section of this report.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the þenefit of parties outside of the
government. We exclude these activities from the Village's other financial statements because
ifre Vittage cannot use these assets to finance its operations. The Village is responsible for
ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes, The

fiduciary fund financial statement can be found in the "Basic Financial Statements" section of

this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements can be found following the basic financial statements,

GOVERNMENT.WI DE FI NANCIAL ANALYSIS

As previously noted, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's

financial position, ln the case of the Village, liabilities exceeded assets by $38,901,465 at the
close of the most recent year.
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lncorporated Village Of Freeport, New York

Management Discussion And Analysis
February 28,2015

Our analysis below focuses on the net position and changes in net position of the Village's
governmental and business-type activities.

Condensed Statemênts of Net Posltion

February 28,
2015

February 28,
2014*

Governmental Activ¡t¡es Business-Tvoe Activit¡es
February 28, February 28,

2015 2014-

$ 32,418,717

Total Primâry Government
February 28, February 28,

2014.2015

s 48,871,402
226

Assets
Current and other assets
Capital âssets

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources

Liab¡lit¡es
Other liabilities
Long-term liabilities

Net pos¡tion

Net investment ¡n capital assets
Restricted - Debt Serv¡ce
Unrestr¡cted

$ I 6,679,913
54,735,352

$ 18,530,142
56,521,973

$ 30,341,260 $ 49,098,630
87.716.253 139,261,677325

75,052,115 116,945,042 118,057 .513 188.360.307 193,109,62871,415,265

517,852 591,692 r,885,913 781 2,403,765 2,636,473

21,174,017
1 1 0,836,834

24,999,731
1 1 1,008,501

16,895,000
80,759,686

1 7,263,880
82,41 9,159

38,0S9,01 7

191 ,596,520

42,263,611
193,427,660

Total liabilities 132.01 0 851 136,008,232 97,654,686 99,683,039 229,665,537 235,691,271

Deferred inflows of resources 788,213 788,213

16,250,347- 33,159,221
2,184,500

4, 168.908 04.

Total net position $ (60,077,734) $ (61,152,638) S 21,176,269 $ 20,419,255 $ t38. 465) $ (40,733,383)

"Restated

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Village's governmental activities, as of
February 28, 2015, were $71,415,265 and $517,852, respectively, a total decrease of

$3,710,690. Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources as of February 28,2015 were

$132,010,851 and $-0-, respectively, a total decrease of $4,785,594. This resulted in a net
position (deficit) balance of $60,077,734 for 2015, an increase of $1 ,074,904. Of the Village's
governmental activities net position (deficit) balance, $15,800,197 was a net investment in

capital assets, $2,184,900 was restricted for debt service; leaving a $78,062,831 unrestricted
deficit.

The deficit balance of unrestricted net position does not necessarily indicate fiscal stress. The
deficit balance in unrestricted arose primarily due to non-current liabilities which include
mandated payments due to employees' retirement systems, compensated absences, claims
and judgments, tax certiorari payables, bond anticipation notes and general obligation bonds of
which proceeds are used to procure capital assets and pay tax certioraris and claims and
judgments that will be funded through future budgetary appropriations when they become
payable.

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Village's business-type activities, as of
February 28,2015, were $116,945,042 and $1,885,913, respectively, a total decrease of

$1,271,339. Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources as of February 28,2015 were
$97,654,686 and $-0-, respectively, a total decrease of $2,028,353. This resulted in a net
position balance of $21 ,176,269 for 2015, an increase of 9757,014. Of the Village's business-
type activities net position balance, $17,359,024 represents net investment in capital assets;
leaving a $3,817,245 unrestrícted net position.

I 5,800,1 97
2,184,900

(78,062,831)

21,746307
472,218

(83,371,26s)

17,s59,024

3,817,245

37,996,754
472,218

(79,202,355)
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lncorporated Village Of Freeport, New York

Management Discussion And Analysis
February 28,2015

The Village's combined net investment in capital assets of $33,159,221 as of February 28'

2015, reflècts its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment,
intangibles and infrastructure); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still

outstánding. The Village uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently,

these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Village's investment in its
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to

repay this debt must be provided from the sale of electric and water services and other sources,

since the capital assets themselves will not be used to liquidate these liabilities.

The Village's combined net position, after prior period adjustments, increased in the current year

after many subsequent years of decreasing due to the ongoing recognition of other
postemployment healthcare costs. The unfunded liability for other postemployment benefits

obligation related to the primary government increased by $5,926,147 in the current year,

bringing the unfunded liability at year end to $52,325,142. Additional information on other
postemployment benefits can be found in Note 3.G to the financial statements.

Our analysis below separately considers the operations of governmental and business-type

activities.

Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activitiês Businêss-Tvpe Aclivities ., - Jotal P¡Inary Gqvqrnment. .

@ Fãb¡'uary28, February28, February2g, February28'

201 5 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Progrâm Revenues
Charges for seruices

Operating grants and mntriþut¡ong
Capital granls and contribut¡on8

Generâl Revenues
Real proparty taxes
Olhâr real propôrly tax itoms
Non-properly tax items
Use of monoy and property
lnsurance recovor¡es
Gain on disposition
State aid - unrestricted
Costs to be rosovered iñ future rovenues
Other

Total revenues

Program expenses
General govemment support
Public safety
Health
Trâñspoñatlon
Economic âssistance and opportunity
CultuË änd recleätluil
Home and community serv¡ces

lntêrest on debt
Electric
Watôr

$ 12,263,760
316,726

1 ,1 00,874

13,ô81,360

42,5A7,094
5,958,140
'1,026,8ô9

1 68,878
595,043
172,873

1,298,74'l

93,315

51.900.953

65,582,3'13

$ 9,505,636
1,341,180

858,408

11,705,224

41,832,154
5,831,198
1 ,015,260
2,545,429

672',037
357.ô36

I,338,263

r93,217

53,785,194

65,490,418

$ 39,839,261

39,839,261

,n,tnã

1,479,ô99

--_----------:-
1,509,492

4 t ,348,753

$ 50,021,420

143,429

50,1 64,849

,o,tri 
-

't,7u,173

1,748,387

51 ,913,236

.
44,873,730
6,949,449

51,823,1 79

90,057
20,490,455

n8¡.257\

?0.3?9.1 98

$ 20,419,255

$ 52,103,021
316,726

1.100.874

53.520,621

42.587,O94
5,958,r40
1,026,869

198,671

595,043
172,873

1,298,741
1,479,699

93,315

53,410,445

106,931,066

1 2,09ô,394
35,609,765

3,216
4,716,275

91,112
5,690,589
4,470,048
1,831,006

33.792.297
6,799,442

105,099,148

1,831,918
(40,733,383)

--:
(40.733.383)

$ (38.901,465)

$ 59,527,056
'I ,341 ,180
1,001,837

61,870,073

41,832,154
5,831,198
1,015,260
2,559,643

672,037
357,636

'1,338,2ô3

1,7U,173
193.?17

55,533,581

'117,403,654

19,397,213
35,1 79,296

5,589
5,890,852

93,357
A 533 ß95

4,869,617
1,897,3ô5

44,873,730
6,949,449

1 25,690,1 63

(8,28ô,509)
(28,693,805)

(3,753,0ô9)

ß2,446,874\

$ (40.733,383)

'12,096,394

35,609,765
3,216

4,715,279
g'l,112

5,090,509
4,470,048
1,831,006

-i-

64,507,409

1,074,904
(61,152,638)

161.162.638)

$ (60.077.734)

'| 9,397,213
35,1 79,296

5,589
5,890,852

93,357
0,533,6C5
4.869.617
1,897,365

-=

73,866,984

(8,376,566)
(49,18,r,2ô0)

(3.591 .81 2)

(52.776.072\

$ (61,152,638)

33,792,297
6,799,442

40,591,739

757,014
20,419,255

--------.---..--
20,419,255

$ 21,176,269

Total expenses

Change ¡n net position
Net positlon, bðginning of the year
Prior pôriod adjuslment (see notê 2D)

Net position, þsginning of tho yeor, as rostat6d

I

Net position, end of year



lncorporated Village Of Freeportn New York

Management Discussion And Analysis
February 28,2015

During the year ended February 28,2015, government-wide revenues decreased from the prior
year by $10,472,588 while government-wide expenditures decreased from the prior year by

$20,591,015.

The key elements of the change in governmental-wide revenues are as follows:

Governmental activities program revenues increased by approximately $1,976,000,
primarily as a result of a reallocation of rental income from use of money and property to
charges for services.

Governmental activities general revenues decreased by approximately $1,884,000 due
to the aforementioned reallocation of rental income,

The key elements of the change in governmental-wide expenses are as follows

General governmental support expenses decreased by approximately $7,300,819 as a
result of a decrease in judgments and claims expenditures.

There was a decrease in transportation and cultural and recreation expenses primarily
due to a decrease in depreciation expense charged to those functions.

Total Cost of Services, Program Revenues and Net Cost of Services
Governmental Activ¡tleg

For the years ended February 28, 2015 and February 28, 2014

a

a

a

Total Cost of Services

@
2015 2014

Program Revenu q

February 28, Fêbruary 28,

20142015

Net Cost of Services
February 28,

2015
February 28,

2014

General government support
Public Safety
Health
Transportat¡on
Econom¡c âssistance and opportunity
Cultural and recreat¡on
Home and commun¡ty services
lnterest on debt

$ 12,096,394
35,609,765

3,216
4,715,275

91,112
5,690,589
4,470,048
1,831,006

$ 19,397,21 3

35,1 79,296
5,589

5,890,852
93,357

6,533,695
4,869,617
1,897,365

$ 3,075,91'1 $
2,31 5,333

1 ,608,1 21

1,857,618
4,824,377

858,699 $
3,283,740

1,25s,240
5,250

1 ,718,292
4,584,003

9,020,483
33,294,432

3,216
3,1 07,1 58

91,112
3,832,971
(354,329)

1,831 ,006

1 8,538,51 4
31,895,556

5,589
4,635,612

88,1 07

4,815,403
285,614

1,897,365

_s__g4,s07lgg_ $ 73,866,984 $ 13,681,360 g 11,705,224 $ 50.826,049 $ 62,'l6 l ,760

The cost of the governmental activities this year was $64,507,409. The net cost of these
services after being subsidized by program revenues of $13,681,360 was $50,826,049.

9



lncorporated Village Of Freeport, New York

Management Discussion And Analysis
February 28,2015

Total Cost of Services, Program Revenues and Net Cost (lncome) of Services
Business-Type Activities

For the years ended February 28,2015 and February 28,2014

Total Cost of Services Proqram Revenues Net Cost of Services

February 28, February 28,
2015 2014

February 28, February 28, Februa
2015 2014 201

ry 28, February 28,
5 2014

Electric
Water

s 33,792,297
6 799 442

$ 44,873,730
6,949,449

$ 32,706,863
7,132,398

$ 42,763,625 $ 1,085,434 $
7 401 224 956)

2,1 1 0,1 05
(451,775)

$ 40, 591,739 $ 51 ,823,179 $ 39,839,461 $ 50,164,849 $ 752,478 $ 1, 658,330

The cost of the business-type activit¡es this year was $40,591,739. The net cost of these
services after being subsidized by program revenues of $39,839,261 was $752,478.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE VILLAGE'S FUNDS

GovçJnmental Funds

The focus of the Village's governmental funds is to provide information on near{erm inflows,

outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such informat¡on is useful in assessing the
Village's financing requirements. ln particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful

measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the year.

The General Fund is the principal operating fund of the Village. At the end of the current fiscal
year, the total fund balance of the General Fund was $8,536,963, an increase of $1,428,897
irom the prior year. Of this amount, 62,277,036 is not in spendable form (inventory of material
and supplies, long term receivables and prepaid expenditures) and the remaining $6,259,927 is

in spendable form as follows: $481,839 is restricted for debt service payments, $51,908 has

been assigned for purchase orders by the Village Comptroller, and the remaining $5,726,180 is

unassigned.

The key elements of the fund balance increase of $1 ,428,897 are as follows:

o lnsurance recoveries received exceeded the final budgeted revenue by $145,000
. Local grants received from Nassau County and the Town of Hempstead exceeded final

budgeted revenue by $185,000
o Sales of real property were an unbudgeted revenue of $351,000
. The combined positive variances (actual expenclitrrres were less than the final budget)

in the general government support, public safety and employee benefits functions were
approximately $800,000

At the end of the current year, the Capital Projects Fund had a total deficit fund balance of

$530,327. The Capital Projects Fund balance increased by $97,893 from the prior year, a result
of timing differences between project expenditures and the recognition of corresponding
permanent financing.

10



lncorporated Village Of Freeport, New York

Management Discussion And Analysis
February 28,2015

Proprieta rv Funds

The Village's proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements but in more detail.

Water Fund

As of February 28, 2015, the Water Fund's net position was 89,757,547, an increase of

$616,766 from the prior year after prior period adjustments. Operating revenues decreased by

approximately $269,000, a result of reduced demand and usage of water in the current year as

compared to the prior year, which is consistent to changes in the weather conditions. Operating
expenses decreased by approximately $172,000, a result of the reduced costs related to
decreased demand of water pumpage despite increases in salaries and other administrative
costs. The Water Fund's non-operating expenses increased by approximately $136,000 due to
more interest expense in the current year as the fund has taken out new debt issues of
$1,123,000 and refunded a portion of another debt issuance.

Electric Fund

As of February 28, 2015, the Electric Fund's net position was $11,418,722, an increase of
9140,248 from the prioryear after prior period adjustments. Operating revenues decreased by

approximately $9,913,000 as a result of a decrease in residential and commercial sales from the
prior fiscal year. Operating expenses also decreased by approximately $10,972,000, in line with
the previously referenced decrease in sales from the prior fiscal year despite an increase in the
cost of transmission and distribution services. The Electric Fund's (net) non-operating
expenses increased by approximately $159,000, mainly due to reduced FEMA reimbursable
grant proceeds of approximately $144,000 since these reimbursable costs were incurred for
power restoration services in fiscal year 2013.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY H¡GHLIGHTS

Over the course of the year the Village Board reviews and revises the budget as needed so that
expenditures do not exceed appropriations, ln the General Fund, various transfers between
appropriations are approved by the Village Board for this purpose. The final budget is also
revised from the original budget for the prior year encumbrances, which increases the
appropriations in excess of the estimated revenues in the amount of $100,676 by appropriating
prior year assigned fund balance. Overall, total revenues and other financing sources were
greater than budgeted by $¿9t,336 and total actual expenditures were less than total
appropriations in the amount of $1 ,038,237. As a result the Village's overall budget was under-
expended by $1,529,573. ln addition, the original budget was increased as follows:

Other financing sources
Appropriations

$ 10,261,413
10,261,413

s
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lncorporated Village Of Freeport, New York

Management Discussion And Analysis
February 28,2015

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

C.apitalAssets

The Village's capital assets net of accumulated depreciation for its governmental and business-
type activities as of February 28,2015, amounts to $54,735,352 and $84,526,325, respectively.
This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and
equipment, infrastructure (roads, curbs, sidewalks, drainage, sewer and water systems) and
intangibles.

During the fiscal year ended February 28,2015, the Village's major capital expenditures were
as follows:

Electric fund machinery and equipment
Various road improvements
Computer systems upgrade
Various building improvements
Acquisition of vehicles and major

equipment governmental activities

Governm ental Activities

$ 812,488
1,238,660

108,298
303,1 57

410,220

s__J-w2ßæ

February 28,2015 February 28,2014*

Land
Construction in progress
Buildings
lmprovements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
lntangibles - software
lnfrastructure:

Roads, curþs, sidewalks and drainage
Sewer system

Total capital assets
Less: accumulated depreciation

$ 3,564,750 $
469,398

13,745,461
16,628,905
14,410,737
1,212,618

48,629,844
20.846.362

3,749,750
1 59,1 58

13,567,717
16,503,492
14,065,340
1,104,320

47,391,182
20,846,364

119,508,075
64,772,723

117,387,323
60,865,350

Total net governmental capital assets $ 54,735,352 $ 56,521,973

*Restated
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lncorporated Village Of Freeport, New York

Management Discussion And Analysis
February 28,2015

Busi ness-type Activities

February 28,2015 February 28,2014*

Land
Construction in progress
Buildings, wells and structures
lmprovements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
lnfrastructure:

Water mains

Total capital assets
Less: accumulated depreciation

$ 170,220 $
23,631

21,280,002
2,003,967

107 ,251,439

170,220
273,426

21,280,002
2,003,967

106,932,693

19 685 634

150,414,893
65,888,568

19 685,634

150,345,942
62 629 689

Total net business-type capital assets $ 84,526,325 $ 87,716,253

*Restated

The Village has an informal capital improvement plan which allows for the continued
improvements to infrastructure, buildings and equipment. The Village finances most of these
improvements with bond anticipation notes and general obligation bonds,

Additional information on the Village's capital assets can be found in Note 3.8 to the financial
statements.

Debt Limit

The Village has the power to contract indebtedness for any Village purpose so long as the
principal amount thereof, subject to certain limited exceptions, shall not exceed seven percent of
the average full valuation of taxable real estate of the Village, and is subject to certain
enumerated exclusions and deductions such as for the electric plant and water facilities.

The constitutional method for determining full valuation is calculated by taking the assessed
valuation of taxable real estate as shown upon the latest completed assessment roll and
dividing the same by the equalization rate as determined by the State Board of Equalization and
Assessment. The State Legislature is required to prescribe the manner by which such ratio
shall be determined. Average full valuation is determined by taking the sum of the full valuation
of the last completed assessment roll and the four preceding assessment rolls and dividing such
sum by five. The percentage of debt contracting power exhausted as of August 26, 2015 was
19.86%.
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lncorporated Village Of Freeport, New York

Management Discussion And Analysis
February 28,2015

Debt Administ,ration

A summary of activity for outstanding debt for the Village for the year ended February 28,2015
is as follows:

Balance
31112014 lncreases Decreases

Balance
2t2812015

Governmental activities:
Bond anticipation notes
General obligation bonds*

Busi ness-type activities :

Loan payable
Bond anticipation notes
General obligation bonds*

$ I 1,019,800 $ 4,297,000
12,948,00348,510.259

$ 59,530,059 $ 17,2iqpq3 $ 19,286,419

$ 6,370,300 $ 8,946,500
12,916J19 48,542,143

$ 57,488,643

62,305
1,534,500

62,305
1,398,000 136,500

997 5, 553,888 66 85769, 589,748 2 466

$ 71, 186,553 $ 2,466,997 $7, 014,'1 93 $ 66,639,357

*Exclusive of related bond premiums

Moody's lnvestment Services maintained the Village's credit rating at "Al" during the year

ended February 28, 2015. There were no changes to the bond rating as of the date of this

report. Additional information on the Village's debt activity can be found in Notes 3.F and 3.G to

the financial statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES

Propertv Tax

The Village has adopted a budget for the 2015-2016 fiscal year, which factors in inflation and

other adjustments to revenues and expenditures as well as prior year positive and negative fund

balances. The 2015-2016 budget includes an overall decrease in real property tax revenues

from the prior year of 0.16% for the general Village governmental activities.

Chapter 97 of the Laws of 2011 (the "Tax Cap Law") was enacted on June 24,2011 and took

effect for the 2012 budget year. The Tax Cap Law limits annual increases of the Village's overall

real property tax to no more than the lesser of 2.00% or the rate of inflation. Certain increases to

the tax íevy-are excluded from the limitations imposed by the Tax Cap Law including exclusions

for certain expenditures for retirement system contributions and tort judgments payable by the

Village, ln addition, the Village Board may override the limitations if the Village Board enacts, by

vote of at least sixty percent oi ttre voting power of the Village Board, a local law to override

such limit for the upcoming budget year. The Tax Cap Law does not provide exclusion for debt

service on generai obligations issued by the Village. Accordingly, the Village has taken the

appropríate steps to opt out of the applicable cap.

14



lncorporated Village Of Freeport, New York

Management Discussion And Analysis
February 28,2015

Ta)< Assessment ïrends

Assessment reductions resulting from tax certiorari actions continue to erode the Village tax
base. This trend has shown signs of slowing and for the year ended February 29, 2016, the
Village anticipates that assessment refunds will not exceed the budget allocation.

CONTACTING THE VILLAGE'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and

creditors with a general overview of the finances of the Village and to demonstrate our
accountability with the money we receive. lf you have any questions about this report or need

additional financial information, contact the lncorporated Village of Freeport, Treasurer's Office,
46 North Ocean Avenue, Freeport, New York.
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lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Statement of Net Position
February 28,2015

Primarv Government

Governmental
Activities

Business{ype
Activities Total

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents
lnvestments
Receivables

Taxes
Accounts, net
State and Federal aid

Due from other governments
lnternal balances
Due from component unit

lnventories
Prepaid expenses
Costs to be recovered from future revenues
Regulatory deposit
Capital assets

Not being depreciated
Being depreciated, net

TotalAssets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts on refunding bonds

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other governments
Due to component unit
Customer deposits
Reg ulatory I iabil ities
Bond anticipation notes payable

Unearned revenues
Non-current I iabilities

Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total Liabilities

NET POSIT]ON
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted

Debt service
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

$ 4,475,784 $
7,144,541

623,047
1,032,927

217,966
127,412
870,642

1,439,638
379,298
368,658

3,937,258
4,828,545

8,828,926

3,494
(870,642)

2,877,575
255,623

12,051,251
506,687

$ 8,413,042
11,973,086

623,047
9,86'1,853

217,966
130,906

1,439,638
3,256,873

624,281
12,051,251

506,687

4,034,148 193,851 4,227,999
50 701,204 84 332474 135,033 ,678

71,4 15,265 116,945,042 188,360,307

517 852

2,427,991
607,877
382,325

9,995
82,520

5,176,500

885 913 2,403,7651

2,986,871
820,642

9,274
132,867

1,346,499
6,384,739

136,500
236,321

5,414,862
1,428,519

391,599
142,862
82,520

1,346,499
6,384,739
5,313,000

236,321

12,486,809 4,841,287 17,328,096
110 80 759 686 191 ,596 ,520

132,010,8-51 97,654 686 229,665,537

15,800,197 17,359,024 33,159,221

2,184,900 2,184,900
(74,245,586)(78,062,831) 3,817,245

$ (60, 077,734) $ 21,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

176,269 $ (38,901 ,465)



lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Statement of Activities
Year Ended February 28,2015

Program Revenues

Expenses
Charges for

Services

Operating
Grants and

Contributions

Capital
Grants and

ContributionsFunctions/Programs
Govern mental activities

General government support
Public safety
Health
Transportation
Economic opportunity and development
Culture and recreation
Home and community services
lnterest

Total Governmental
Activities

Busi ness{ype activities
Water
Electric

Total Business-Type
Activities

Total

$ 12,096,394
35,609,765

3,216
4,715,279

91,112
5,690,589
4,470,048

$ 2,e68,952 $
2,244,163

698,863

1 ,857,618
4,494,164

106,959 $
71,170

909,258

138,597 191 ,616
1,8 31,006

64,507,409 12,263,760 316,726 I, 100,874

6,799,442
33,792,297

7,132,398
32,706,863

40,591,739 39,839,261

$ 105, 099, 1 48

General revenues
Real property taxes
Other tax items

lnterest and penalties on real property taxes
Payments in lieu of taxes

Non-property taxes
Non-property tax distribution from County
Utilities gross receipts tax

Unrestricted use of money and property
Unrestricted State aid
Miscellaneous
lnsurance recoveries

Costs to be recovered from future revenues
Gain on sale of property

$ 52,103,021 $ 316,726 $ 1, 100,87 4

Total General Revenues

Change in Net Position

NET POSITION
Beginning of Year, as reported

Prior Period Adjustments

Beginning of Year, as restated

End of Year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Chanoes in Net Position

Primary Government

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities Total

$ (9,020,483) $
(33,294,432)

(3,216)
(3,1 07,1 58)

(91 ,112)
(3,832,971)

354,329
(1,831,006)

$ (9,020,483)
(33,294,432)

(3,2't6)
(3,107,1 58)

(91,112)
(3,832,971)

354,329
(1,831,006)

(50,826,049) (50,826,049)

332,956
(1,08s,434)

332,956
(1,085,434)

(752,478) (752,478)

(50,826,04e) (752,478) (51,578, 527)

42,587,094

341,920
5,616,220

1 19,088
907,781
168,878

1,298,741
93,315

595,043

29,793

1,479,699

42,587,094

341,920
5,616,220

1 19,088
907,781
198,671

1,298,741
93,315

595,043
1,479,699

172,873172,873

51 900 953

1,074,904

(57,560,826)

(3,591,812)

757 014

20,580,512

(161,257)

53 410 5

1 831 918

(36,980,314)

(3,753,069)

(40,73?,3.83)

$ (38,901,465)

509,4921,

(61 , 1 52,638) 20,419,255

g (60,077,734) $ 21 ,176,269
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lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
Februarv 28.2015

General
Capital
Projects

Total
Governmental

Funds

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents

lnvestments

Taxes receivaþle

Other receivables
Accounts, net
State and Federal aid
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Due from component unit

lnventories

Prepaid expenditures

TotalAssets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Due to component unit
Bond anticipation notes payable

Total Liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred tax revenues

Total Liabilities and
Deferred lnflows of Resources

Fund balances
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred lnflows of
Resources and Fund Balances

$ 1,699,494

5,677,272 1,467,269 7, 144.541

$ 2,776290 $ 4,475.784

623,047 62 J- 047

940,230
174,843

5,437,310
127,412
439 638

92,697
43,123

3,190,270

1,032,927
217,966

8,627,580
127,412

J,439,638

11,445,5238,1 19,433 3,326,090

379,298 298

368 658 368,658

$ 16.867.202 $ 7.569.649 $24 .851

8 2,427,743 $
286,586

4,929,449
9,995

82,520

248 $
95,739

2,827,489

2,427,991
382,325

7,756,938
9,995

82,520
5,176,500

7,736,293

5,17ç,500

8,099,976 15,836,269

593 946 593,946

8,330,239 8,099,976 16,430,215

2,277,036
481,839

5'l,g0g
5,726j80

1,703,061
2,277,036
2,184,900

51,908
3,492,792Q,233.388)

I, 963 (530,327) 8,p06,636

$ 16.867,202 $ 7,569,649

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to
the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position

February 28,2015

Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net

Position are Different Because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not repofted in the funds.

Other long{erm assets are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are reflected as unearned in the funds.

Deferred tax revenue

Governmental funds do not report the effect of losses on refunding
bonds whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
statement of activities.

Deferred amounts on refunding bonds

Long{erm liabilities that are not due and payable in the current
period are not reported in the funds.

Accrued interest payable
Claims payable
Bonds payable
Compensated absences
Bond anticipation notes payable
Pension obligations
Other post employment benefit obligations payable

Net Position of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

$ 8,006,636

54,735,352

593,946

517,852

(607,877)
(5,834,821)

(49,113,516)
(19,328,659)

(3,770,000)
(5,002,756)

(40,273,891\

$ (60, 077,734\
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lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governrnental Funds
Year Ended February 28,2015

General
Capital
Projects

Total
Governmental

Funds

REVENUES
Real property taxes
Other tax items
Non-property taxes
Departmental income
lntergovern mental reven u es
lnterfund revenues
Use of money and property
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
State aid
Federalaid
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government support
Public safety
Health
Transportation
Economic opportunity and development
Culture and recreation
Home and community services
Employee benefits

Capital outlay
Debt service

Principal
lnterest
Refunding bond issuance costs

Total Expenditures

Deficiency of Revenues
Over Expenditures

orHER FINANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
lnsu¡rance recoveries
Sale of real propefi
Bonds issued
Bond anticipation notes issued
Refunding bonds issued
lssuance premium
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Transfers in

ïransfers out

Total Other Financing Sources

Net Change in Fund Balances

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Beginning of Year

End of Year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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63,774,035 1,100,874 64,

$ 42,647,606 $
5,958,140
1,026,869
7,207,769

4,952
1,088,000
1,379,395
1,062,483
1,504,312
1,476,870

138,597
939,076
134,648

$ 42,647,606
5,958,140
1,026,869
7,207,769

4,952
1,088,000
1,379,395
1,062,483
1,504,312
2,415,946

273,245
279.042 27 150 306 192

874,909

13,805,768
19,528,094

3,216
2,489,469

89,867
3,523,179
3,424,226

16,414,226
1,838,801

13,805,768
19,528,094

3,216
2,489,469

89,867
3,523,179
3,424,226

16,414,226
1,838,801

5,567,970
1,798,219

I 13,650

5,567,970
1,798,219

1 13,650

66, 757,884 1,838,801 68,596 ,685

(2,98 3.849) (737,927\ (3,721,7.76)

595,043
357,873

3,770,000
7,146,003

495,410
(7,527,763)

34,480
(458,300)

746

1,428,897

7,108,066

412,000

595,043
357,873
412,000

3,770,000
7J46p03

495,410
(t,52t,t63)

492,780
(492,780)

458,300
(341480)

835,820 5,248.566

97,893 1,526,790

(628,2?0)

$ (530,327)

6,479,846

$ 8.536.963 $ 8,006,636



lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Activities
Year Ended February 28,2015

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities are Different Because:

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives

and reported as depreciation expense, This is the amount by which depreciation expense
exceeded capital outlay in the current period, This amount may be less than total capital

outlay since capital outlay includes amounts that are under the capitalization threshold.

Capital outlay expenditures
Depreciation expense

Revenues reported in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Sale of property
Real property taxes

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing
debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. Repayment of
debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.

Refunding bonds issued
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
lssuance premium
Bonds issued
Bond anticipation notes issued
Principal paid on bond anticipation notes
Principal paid on bonds
Amortization of loss on refunding bonds and issuance premium

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in

governmental funds.
Accrued interest
Prepaid expenses
Claims payable
Compensated absences
Pension obligations
Other post employment benefit obligations

Change in Net Position of GovernmentalActivities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

$ 1,526,790

2,370,575
(3,972,196)

(1,601,621)

(185,000)
(60,512)

(245,512',)

(7,146,003)
7,527,763
(495,410)
(412,000)

(3,770,000)
1 10,000

5,457,970
059)

1,214,261

25,272
(503,824)

7,101 ,060
(1,663,330)

(331,744)
(4,446,448)

180.986
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lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

General Fund
Year Ended February 28,2015

Budqet (1)
Original Final

Budget

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

(9,ee6)
(50,381)
47,869

(98,401)
1,952

118,326
75,483

(295,688)
(23,263)
63,597

162,842

(7,660)

Actual

REVENUES
Real property taxes
Other tax items
Non-property taxes
Departmental income
lntergovernmental charges
lnterfund charges
Use of money and property
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
State aid
Federal aid
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government support
Public safety
Health
Transportation
Economic opportunity and development
Culture and recreation
Home and community services
Employee benefits

Debt service
Principal
lnterest
Refunding bond issuance costs

Total Expenditures

Deficiency of Revenues
Over Expenditures

oTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
lnsurance recoverieg
Sale of real property
Bond anticipation notes issued
Refunding bonds issued
lssuance premium
Payment to refilnclecl bond escrow agenl
Transfers in
Transfers out

$ 42,657,602
6,008,521

979,000
7,306J74

3,000
1,088,000
1,261,069

987,000
1,900,000
1 ,500,1 33

75,000

$ 42,657,602
6,008,521

979,000
7 3A6,174

3,000
1,088,000
1,261,069

987,000
1,800,000
1 ,500,1 33

75,000
116,200

$ 42,647,606 $
5,958,140
1,026,869
7,207,769

4,952
1,088,000
'1,379,395

1,062,483
1,504,312
1,476,870

138,597
279 042116 200

63,781,695 63,781,695 63,774,035

11,799,257
19,593,235

3,350
2,462,902

141,619
3,359,807
3,889,265

16,450,102

5,950,970
1,870,264

14,399,855
19,599,735

3,350
2,561,002

141,619
3,546,209
3,445,165

16,547,302

5,567,970
1,870,264

113,650

13,805,768
19,528,094

3,216
2,489,469

89,867
3,523,179
3,424,226

16,414,226

594,087
71,641

134
71,533
51,752
23,030
20,939

133,076

5,567,970
1,798,219

113,650
72,045

65,520,771 67,796,121 66 757 884 1,038 .237

(1, 739,076) (4,014,426) (2,983,849) 1,030,577

450,000
13,400

1,150,000

450,000
13,400

3,770,000
7,146,003

495,410
(7,527,763)

25,000

595,043
357,873

3,770,000
7,146,003

495,410
(7,527,763)

34,480
(458,300)

145,043
344,473

9,480
458,300)

25,000

Total Other Financing Sources

Net Change in Fund Balance

FUND BALANCE
Beginning of Year

End of Year

1,638

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

(1) lncludes prior year encumbrances of $100,676.
23

,400 3,913,750 4,412,746 498,996

(1 00,676) (100,676) I ,428,897 1 ,529,573

100,676 7,108,066 7,007,390

$

100,676

$8, 536,963 $ 8,536,963



lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
February 28,2015

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water Electric Totals

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and equivalents
lnvestments
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
lnventories
Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Non-current assets
Costs to be recovered from future revenues

Regulatory deposit

Capital assets
Not being depreciated
Being depreciated, net

Total Non-Current Assets

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts on refunding bonds

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable

Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Customer deposits
Regulatory liabilities
Bond anticipation notes payable
Unearned revenues

Total Current Liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total Non-Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

5,180,961 17,843,725 23,024,686

$ 223,068 $
273,106

2,911,331
1,605,692

3,714,190
4,555,439
5,91 7,595

687,573
3,494

2,753,074
212,360

3,937,258
4,828,545
8,828,926
2,293,265

3,494
2,877,575

255,623

$

124,501
43,263

2,473,057 9,578,194
506,687

107,870
034

12,051,251
506,687

85,981
18,093,440

193,851

84,332,474

20,652,478

25,833,439

76,431,785

94,275,510

97,084,263

120,108,949

94,846 791 067

2,912,444
718,438

1,275,677
132,867

1,346,499
6,384,739

885,9131,

74,427
102,204

9,274
1,888,230

2,986,871
820,642

9,274
3,163,907

132,867
1,346,499
6,384,739

136,500136,500
236,321 236.321

2,210,635 13,006,985 15,217,620

1 ,151 ,390
12,808,713

3,689,897
67,950,973

4,841,287
80,759,686

13,960,103 71,640,870 85,600,973

16, 170,738 84,647,855 100, 818,593

7,220,446
2,537,101

10,138,578
1,280,144

17,359,024
3,817,24s

24

$ 9,757,547 $ 11,4 18,722 s__4!J6,26e._



lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended Feb ruarv 28.2015

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water Electric ïotals
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
lnterest and penalties
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Power generation
Power and pumping
Transmission and distribution services
Street lighting and signal system
Customer counting and collection
Administrative and general
Depreciation and amortization
Charges in lieu of taxes
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Expenses

lncome from Operations

NON-OPERATTNG REVENUES (EXPENSES)
lnterest income
lnterest expense
Costs to be covered from future revenues

Total Non-Operating Expenses

Change in Net Position

NET POSITION
Beginning of Year, as reported

Prior Period Adjustment

Beginning of Year, as restated

End of Year

$ 6,658,995
473,403

$ 31,995,841

711

706

$ 38,654,836
473,403

7 132 398 32

711 022

863 39,839.261

13,702,327
2,028,066
1,731,765

98,824
919,374

10,009,645
3,752,621
5,1 51 ,1 50

2,028,066
216,651

1,993,899
755,517

1,344,150

13,702,327

1,515,114
99,824

919,374
8,015,746
2,997,104
3,807,000

378 .152 378 152

þ 338 433283 31 641 37 771 924

1 273 222 2,067.337794 115

25,335
(461 ,159)

4,459
(2,358,656)

29,793
(2,819,815)
1,479,699258 475 1 221 224

(177,349) (1,132,974) fi,3 10.323)

616,7p6 140 248 57.0147

9,411,771

(270,990)

11,168,741 20,580,512

_ _ (16J,,257)109 733

9,1 40.781 11,278,474 20,41 9.255

$JJ97.547-

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

25
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lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Statement of Cash Flotvs
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended February 28,2015

Business-tvpe Activities - Enterorise Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from charges for services
Cash received from interfund services provided

Cash payments for goods, services and compensation
Cash payments for interfund serv¡ces used

Nel Cash From Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Bonds issued
Principal paid on bonds
Principal paid on bond anticipation notes
Principal paid on loan
lnteræt paid on indebtedness
Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Net Cash From Capital and

Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investmonts
lnterest income

Nei Cash From lnvesting Activities

Net Change in Cash and Equivalents

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
Beginning of Year

End of Year

RECONCILIATION OF INCOME FROM OPERATIONS TO
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

lncome from operat¡ons
Adjustments to reconcile income from operations

to net cash from operating activities
Depreciation and amortizat¡on
Çhanges in operating assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
lnventories
Prepaid expenses
Regulatory deposit
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Customer deposits
Regulatory liabilities
Pension obl¡gations
Compensated absences
Other post employment benefit obligations payable

Net Cash from Operating Activities

NON-CASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Refunding bonds issued
lssuance premium
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Refunding bond issuance costs

(1]06J12) (6,160,447) (7,867,159)

$ 7,299,166

(5,414,578)
(597,167)

1,287,421

$ 31,560,819
2,339,705

(22,242,434)
(3,037,504)

Water Electric Totals

$ 38,859,985
2,339,705

(27,6s7,012)
(3,634,671)

8,620,586 9,908,007

r,123,000
(1,005,396)
(1,398,000)

(403,447',)
(22,869),

(3,146,634)

(62,305)
(2,411,6M',)

(53e,824)

1,123,000
(4,152,030)
(1,398,000)

(62,305)
(2,815,131)

(562,693)

(s5)
25,335

(2,253,704)
4,458

(2,253,799)
29.793

25,240 (2,249,246) (2,224,006\

(3s4,051) 210,893 (r 83,1 58)

617,119 3,503,297 4,120,416.

$ 223,068 $ 3,714,190 $ 3,937 .258

$ 794,115 $ 1,273,222 $ 2,067,337

755,517 2,997j04 3,752,621

166,768
(1,332,068)

15,565
(16,400)

(82,940)
9,274

746,983

19,923
(47,791)
258,475

1,066,094
(91,443)
143,140
(39,260)
(e5,954)
139,962

(980,086)

769,496
75,870

1,796,438
128,179
216;600

1,221,224

1,232,862
(1,423,511)

143,140
(23,6e5)

(1 12,354)
139,962

(1,063,026)
9,274

1,516,479
75,870

1,796,438
148,102
168,809

1,479,699

$1 .421 $ 8,620,586 g_*g99gp9l

206J48 $
14,292

(217,161)
(3,27e)

1,343,997
93,175

(1,415,797)
(21,375)

The accompanying notes are an inlegral part of ihe financial statements.
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$ 1 ,1 37,849 $
78,883

(1,198,636)
(18,0s6)



lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
Fiduciary Fund
February 28,2015

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents
lnvestments
lnvestments - Service awards program
Accounts receivable

TotalAssets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Deposits
Employee payroll deductions
Length of service award program payable

Total Liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

Agency

$ 213,765
14,575

5,177,680
1, 083,370

$ 6,489,390

$ 702,396
541,527

67,787
177,6805,

$ 6,489,390
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lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Notes to Financial Statements
Februarv 28.2015

Note I - Summarv of Significant Accounfing.Folicies

The lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York ("Village") is a municipality located in the State of New

York. ltwas established in 1892, and is governed by its Charter, NewYork StateVillage Law, and other
general municipal laws of the State of New York. The Village Board of Trustees is the legislative body

responsible for overall operations. The Village Mayor serves as the Chief Executive Officer and the

Treasurer serves as the Chief Financial Officer. The Village provides the following services to its residents:
public safety, health, transportation, economic opportunity and development, culture and recreation, home

and community services, general and administrative support and water and electric service.

The accounting policies of the Village conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to
governmental units and the Uniform System of Accounts as prescribed by the State of New York. The

Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB') is the accepted standard setting body for

establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The following is a summary of the

Village's more significant accounting policies:

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The financial reporting entity consists of a) the primary government, which is the Village, b)

organizations for which the Village is financially accountable and c) other organizations for which

the nature and significance of their relationship with the Village are such that exclusion would cause

the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete as set forth by GASB,

ln evaluating how to define the Village, for financial reporting purposes, management has

considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the

Village's reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth by GASB, including legal

standing, fiscal dependency and financial accountability. Based upon the application of these
criteria, the following discretely presented component unit is included in the Village's reporting entity
because of it's operational or financial relationship with the Village. Discretely presented component
units are presented a separate column in the government-wide financial statement to emphasize
that they are legally separate from the Village.

The Village of Freeport Community Development Agency ("Agency") is a public benefit corporation
created by state legislation to promote the safety, health and welfare of the Village's inhabitants and

to promote the sound growth and development of the Village. The Mayor of the Village serves as

the Chairman and appoints the Community Development Commissioners. On May 6, 2013, the

Village entered into an lnter-municipal Agreement with the Agency. The Village advances certain

salary and fringe benefit costs of the Agency and then charges them back. The Village acts as a
pass-through entity for funding received from the Federal U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) through contracts with the County of Nassau ("County"). Refer to Note 2E.

Excluded from the Reporting Entity is the Village of Freeport Housing Authority ("Authority") which
was created in 1957 by the New York State Legislature. Although the Authority is related to the
Village, it is excluded based on the following: (a) only the governing board of the Authority is

appointed by the Mayor; (b) the local government provides no subsidy to the Authority nor is it

responsible for the operational deficits of the Authority; (c) the Authority's debt is essentially
supported by the operating revenues of the Authority and is not guaranteed by the Village; (d) the
local government does not appoint management of the Authority nor does it approve the Authority's
budget, contracts or hiring of staff; (e) the Village has no oversight responsibility for funds of the

Authority.
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lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
Februarv 28.201 5

Note 1 - Summarv of Sisnificant Accountinq Policies (Continued)

B. Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of

Activities) report information on all non-fiduciary activities of the primary government as a whole,

except for interfund services provided and used. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity
has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported
by iaxes and intergovernmental reverlues, are reported separately from businesstype activities,

which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for suppotl.

The Statement of Net Position presents the financial position of the Village at the end of its fiscal
year. The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which direct expenses of a given

function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include (1) charges to

customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods or services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment, (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment and (3) interest
earned on grants that is required to be used to support a particular program. Taxes and other items
not identified as program revenues are reported as general revenues. The Village does not allocate
indirect expenses to functions in the Statement of Activities.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmentalfunds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operation. The principal operating revenues of the Enterprise
Funds are charges to customers for services. Operating expenses for the Enterprise Funds include

the cost of services, administrative expenses and benefit costs. All revenues and expenses not

meeting the definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

C. Fund Financial Statements

The accounts of the Village are organized and operated on the basis of funds. A fund is an

independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts, which comprise its

assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund balances/net
position, revenues and expenditures/expenses. Fund accounting segregates funds according to
their intenclecl purpr:se ancl is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with finance
related legal and contractual provisions. The Village maintains the minimum number of funds
consistent with legal and managerial requirements. The focus of governmental fund financial
statements is on major funds as that term is defined in professional pronouncements. Each major
fund is to be presented in a separate column, with non-major funds, if any, aggregated and
presented in a single column. Proprietary and fiduciary funds are reported by type. Since the
governmental fund statements are presented on a different measurement focus and basis of
accounting than the government-wide statements' governmental activities column, a reconciliation
is presented on the pages following, which briefly explain the adjustments necessary to transform
the fund based financial statements into the governmental activities column of the government-wide
presentation. The Village's resources are reflected in the fund financial statements in three broad

fund categories, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as follows:
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lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
Februarv 28. 2015

Note 1-- Summarv of Sisnifjcant Accountins Policies (Continued)

c.

Governmental Funds - Governmental Funds are those through which most general

@Sarefinanced.Theacquisition,uSeandbalancesof
éxpendable financial resources and the related liabilities are accounted for through
governmental funds. The following represents the Village's major governmental

funds.

General Fund - The General Fund constitutes the primary operating fund of the

Village and is used to account for and report all financial resources not accounted

for and reported in another fund.

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for and report

financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned to expenditures for

capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of major capitalfacilities and

other capital assets, other than those financed by proprietary funds.

Proprietary Funds - Proprietary funds are used to account for operations that are

financed and òperated in a manner similar to private enterprises or where the

governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned,

expenseõ incurred and/or net income is necessary for management accountability.

Enterprise funds are used to account for those operations that provide services to

the public. The operations of the Water and Electric Funds are recorded as

enterprise funds.

Fiduciarv Funds (Not lncluded in Government-Wide Statements) - Fiduciary Funds

ãrã useO to account for assets held by the Village in an agency capacity on behalf of

others. The Agency Fund is used to account for employee payroll tax withholdings,

service awards programs and various other deposits that are payable to other
jurisdictions.

Fund Categories

a

b.

D Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its
measurement fócus and basis of accounting, Measurement focus indicates the type of resources

being measured such as current financial resources (current assets less current liabilities) or

economic resources (all assets and liabilities). The basis of accounting indicates the timing of

transactions or events for recognition in the financial statements'

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources

measurement focus and the accrualóasrs of accounting, as are the proprietary funds. The Agency

Fund has no measurement focus but utilizes the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are

recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the

timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which th_ey

are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility

requirements imposed by the provider have been met,
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lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
Februarv 28. )o15

Notg,l - Summarv of Siqnificant.Accountinq. Policies (Continued)

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources

measurement focus and the modified accrualbasrs of accounting. Revenues are recognized as

soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when

they are coilectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the

curient pe¡od. Property taxes are considered to be available if collected within sixty days of the

fiscal year end, A ninety day availability period is generally used for revenue recognition for most

other governmental fund revenues. Property taxes associated with the current fiscal period as well

as chárges for services and intergovernmental revenues are considered to be susceptible to

accrual ánd have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Fees and other similar

revenues are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in

cash. lf expenditures are the prime factor for determining eligibility, revenues from Federal and

State grants are accrued when the expenditure is made. Expenditures generally are recorded

when ã liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as

well as expenditures related to compensated absences, certain pension obligations, certain_claims

and other post employment benefit obligations are recorded only when payment is due. General

capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. lssuance of long-

term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

E. Assets, Liabitities, Deferred Outftows/lnflows of Resources and Net Position or Fund

Balances

Deposits, lnvestments and Risk Disclosure

Cash and Equivalents - Cash and equivalents consist of funds deposited in demand

deposit accounts, time deposit accounts and certificates of deposit with original maturities of

less than three months.

The Village's investment policies are governed by State statutes. The Village has adopted
its own written investment policy, which provides for the deposit of funds in FDIC insured

commercial banks or trust companies located within the State. The Village is authorized to

use demand deposit accounts, time deposit accounts and certificates of deposit.

Permissible investments include obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. Agencies,
repurchase agreements and obligations of New York State or its political subdivisions.

Collateral is required for demand deposit accounts, time deposit accounts and certificates of

deposit at 1000/o of all deposits not covered by Federal deposit insurance. The Village has

entered into custodial agreements with the various banks which hold their deposits. These

agreements ar¡thr:rrize the obligations that may be pledged as çollateral. Such obligations

¡nilude, among other instruments, obligations of the United States and its agencies and

obligations of the State and its municipal and school district subdivisions.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Village's deposits may

not be returned to it. GASB Statement No. 40 directs that deposits be disclosed as

exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance and the

deposits are either uncollateralized, collateralized by securities held by the pledging financial
institution or collateralized by securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust

department but not in the Village's name. The Village's aggregate bank balances that were

not covered by depository insurance were not exposed to custodial credit risk at May 31,

2015.
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lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
Februarv 28. 2015

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accguntins Policies (Continued)

Investments - The Village participates in the Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System

('CLASS'), a cooperative investment pool, established pursuant to General Municipal Law

that meets the definition of a 2a7-like pool. ln accordance with the provisions of General

Municipal Law, Article 34, CLASS has designated PT Asset Management, a subsidiary of

Public Trust Advisors, LLC as its registered investment advisor. Public Trust Advisors, LLC

is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"), and is subject to all of

the rules and regulations of an investment advisor handling public funds. As such, the SEC

provides regulatory oversight of CLASS.

The pool is authorized to invest in various securities issued by the United States and its
agencies. The amount represents the amortized cost of the cooperative shares and is
considered to approximate fair value. The Village's position in the pool is equal to the value

of the pool shares. Additional information concerning the cooperative is presented in the

annual report of CLASS, which may be obtained from public Trust Advisois, LLC, 999 18th

Street, Suite 1230, Denver, CO 80202.

CLASS is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor's. Local government investment cooperatives in

this rating category meet the highest standards for credit quality, conservative investment
policies ãnO sãfety of principal. The cooperative invests in a high quality portfolio of

investments legally permissible for municipalities and school districts in the State.

lnvestments of the Fire Service Awards Program are funds that are held on deposit with a

broker. These funds are invested along with the Company's other assets in a variety of

instruments. All investments are stated at fair value.

The Village was invested only in the above mentioned obligations and, accordingly, was not

exposed to any interest rate or credit risk.

Taxes Receivable - Property taxes are levied and become a lien no later than March 1't each year.

Taxes are levied based upon the taxable value of all real property located within the Village. Taxes

are payable in two equal installments without penalty, on March 1't and September 1". The first

half 
'oi 

real property taxes becomes delinquent after April 1't and the second half becomes
delinquent after October 1't. Thereafter, penalties and interest are imposed pursuant to the Real

Property Tax Law. After certification and return of the tax warrant to the Board of Trustees of the

uncolleðted tax items an annual sale of the tax liens is held pursuant to the provisions of the Real

Property Tax Law. Tax sale certificates are issued for all uncollected property taxes, in anticipation

of the sale of properties in satisfaction of the property tax liens.

Other Receivables - Other receivables relating to governmental activities include amounts due

from other governments and individuals for services provided by the Village as well as amounts due

from franchise agreements and payments in lieu of taxes. Receivables relating to business-type
activities primarily consist of amounts due from residents for sales or services rendered.

Receivables are recorded and revenues recognized as earned or as specific program

expenditures/expenses are incurred. Allowances are recorded when appropriate.

32



lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
Februarv 28, 2015

Note I - Summaru of Siqnificant Accountino Policies (Continued)

Due From/To Other Funds - During the course of its operations, the Village has numerous

transactions between funds to finance operations, provide services and construct assets. To the

extent that certain transactions between funds had not been paid or received as of February 28,
2015, balances of inter"fund amounts receivable or payable have been recorded in the fund

financial statements. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and

the business{ype activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as internal
balances.

lnventories - lnventories in governmental funds consisting of expendable supplies held for
consumption are valued at average cost. These inventories are accounted for on the consumption
method and are recorded as an expenditure at the time of usage. Reported amounts in the
governmental funds are equally offset by nonspendable fund balance in the fund financial

ðtatements, which indicates that these amounts do not constitute "available spendable resources"

even though they are a component of current assets.

Proprietary fund inventory, consisting of various parts and supplies is accounted for on the

consumption method and is stated at average cost.

Prepaid Expenses/Expenditures - Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future

accounting periods, and are recorded as prepaid items using the consumption method in both the
government wide and fund financial statements. Prepaid expenses/expenditures consist of pension

and other costs which have been satisfied prior to the end of the fiscal year, but represent items,

which have been provided for in the subsequent year's budget and will benefit such periods'

Reported amounts in the governmental funds are equally offset by nonspendable fund balance in

the fund financial statements, which indicates that these amounts do not constitute "available

spendable resources" even though they are a component of current assets.

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities - Costs to be Recovered from Future Revenues - The

curient Water and Electric Funds rates for the sale of water and electricity revenues includes

amounts for postemployment benefits other than pensions that are expected to be paid out during

the fiscal year, but noi for the amount of the annual required contribution as calculated under

GovernmentalAccounting Standards Board Statement No. 45, "Accounting and Financial Reporting

by Emptoyers for Postemptoyment Benefits other than Pensions". ln accordance with GASB

Statemeni No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained i¡t the
pre-November 30, 1989 Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and AICPA

Pronouncements, the Village has deferred the excess of current annual required contributions over

the amounts paid for the year ended February 28, 2015. The deferred costs will be recovered

through future revenues ae prescribed by the Village's Board of Trustees for the Water Fund and

the råtemaking policies of the New York State Public Service Commission ("NYPSC") for the

Electric Fund. The costs to be recovered from the future revenues for the year ended February 28,

2015 were determined as follows:
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Water Fund

Costs excluded from ratemaking policies
Annual OPEB costs recoverable from rate payers

Costs included in current year rates
Amount of current year payments

Costs to be recovered from future revenues

Beginning

Ending

Electric Fund

$ 443,311 $ 1,897,712

( 184.836)

258,475

2 214 582

$ 2,473,057

(676,488)

1,221,224

8,356,970

_9_9,578,ßl_

Other Regulatory Assets and Liabilities - The Water Fund's ratemaking policies are established

by the Village Board of Trustees. The financial statements of the Electric Fund reflect the

ratemaking policies and orders of the NYPSC. Accordingly, the Water and Electric Funds follow

GASB Statement No. 62 "Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained
in pre-November 30, 1g8g FASB and AICPA Pronouncements", which allows forthe deferral of

expenses and income on the Statement of Net Position when it is probable that those expenses

and income will be allowed in the rate setting process in a period different from the period in which

they would have been reflected in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
poð¡tion. These deferred regulatory assets and liabilities are then recognized in the period in which

the amounts are reflected in the rates. As of February 28,2015, the Village's regulatory assets and

liabilities, as reported in the Electric Fund, were $506,687 and $6,384,739, respectively,

CapitalAssets - Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets

(e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks and similar items) are reported in the government-wide financial

statements. Capi[al assets are defined by the Village as assets with an initial, individual cost of

more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at

historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are

recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. The

coét of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially

extend assets lives is not capitalized.

ln the case of the initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets (i.e., those reported by

governmental activities), the Village chose to include all such items regardless of their acquisition

date or amount. The Village was able to estimate the historical cost for the initial reporting of these

assets through backtrending (i.e., estimating the current replacement cost of the infrastructure to be

capitalized and using an appropriate price-level index to deflate the cost to the acquisition year or

estimated acquisition year).
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Notg.l : SUlTmary of Sisnitiçênt Accou nti4q Pol icies (Conti nued)

Land and construction-in-progress are not depreciated. Property, plant and equipment of the
Village are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives.

Life
Class inY

Land lmprovements
Buildings and lmprovements
Machinery and Equipment
lnfrastructure
lntangible - Software

20
20-50

5-1 0
25-50

5

The costs associated with the acquisition or construction of capital assets are shown as capital
outlay expenditures on the governmental fund financial statements, Capital assets are not
shown on the governmentalfund balance sheet.

lntangible assets lack physical substance, are nonfinancial in nature, and have an estimated useful

life extending beyond a single reporting period. The term depreciation, as used in these financial
statements, includes amortization of intangible assets.

The Electric Fund's capital assets are depreciated using rates based on studies of the estimated
useful lives and estimated net values of the assets. Donated property, if any, is recorded at the fair
market value of one dollar, The anticipated costs of removing assets upon retirement are provided

for over the life of those assets as a component of depreciation expense. The following
depreciation rates have been approved by the NYPSC.

Buildings and structures
Machinery and equipment

1.89o/o - 2.50%
2.10o/o'8.32o/o

ln accordance with NYPSC policies, the Electric Fund adjusts the accumulated depreciation for the
following upon the retirement of a capital asset: (a) a reduction of the accumulated depreciation for
the original cost of the asset, regardless if it is fully depreciated or not; (b) a reduction of the
accumulated depreciation for the cost of removing the capital asset; (c) an increase to the

aocumulate depreciation for the costs of materials salvaged; and (d) an increase to the account for
the minimal amount of cash receipts received.

Unearned Revenues - Unearned revenues arise when assets are recognized before revenue
recognition criteria have been satisfied. ln government-wide financial statements, unearned
reveñues consist of revenue received in advance and/or revenue from grants received before the

eligibility requirements have been met.

Unearned revenues in the fund financial statements are those where asset recognition criteria have
been met, but for which revenue recognition criteria have not been met. The Village has reported

9236,321for advance collections of fees in the Electric Fund. Such amounts have been deemed to
be measurable but not "available" pursuant to generally accepted accounting principles.
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Deferred Outflows/lnflows of Resources - ln addition to assets, the statement of financial

position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate

financial statement element represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period

and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) untilthen'

ln addition to liabilities, the statement of financial posiiion will sometimes report a separate section

for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an

acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow

of resources (revenue) until that time.

The Village reported deferred outflows of resources of $517,852 and $1,885,913 in the

governmeñt-wide and proprietary fund Statements of Net Position. These amounts result from the

ðifference in the carrying value of the refunded debt and its reacquisition price. These amounts are

deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.

The Village has reported deferred inflows of resources of $593,946 for real property taxes in the

General Fund. This amount is deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that

the amount becomes available.

Long-Term Liabilities - ln the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-

term debt and other long{erm obligations are reported as liabilities in the Statement of Net Position'

Bond premiums and discounts aie deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds

payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs

expended as incurred.

ln the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts,

as well as bond issuance costs, ðuring the current period. The face amount of debt issued is

reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other

financing sources, while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.

Compensated Absences - The various collective bargaining agreements provide for the payment

of accumulated vacation and sick leave upon separation of service. The liability for such

accumulated leave is reflected in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statement as

current and longterm liabilities. A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds

only if the tlaOitity matured through employee resignation or retirement. The liability for

compensated absences includes salary related payments, where applicable.

Net Position - Net position represent the difference between assets, deferred outflows of

resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Net position is reported as restricted

when there are limitations imposed on its use either through the enabling legislation adopted by

the Village or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations

of other governmenls. Net position on the Statement of Net Position includes, net investment in

capital aðsets and restricted for debt service. The balance is classified as unrestricted.

Fund Balances - Generally, fund balance represents the difference between current assets and

deferred outflows of resources and current liabilities and deferred inflows of resources' ln the

fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund classifications that comprise a

hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the Village is bound to honor constraints on the
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specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. Under this standard the fund

balance classifications are as follows:

Nonspendable fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are

either not in spendable form (inventories, prepaid amounts, long{erm receivables) or they

are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact (the corpus of a permanent
f' 'nÄ\r ur rv/r,

Restricted fund balance is reported when constraints placed on the use of the resources

are imposed by grantors, contributors, laws or regulations of other governments or

imposed by law fhrougn enabling legislation. Enabling legislation includes a legally

enforceable requirement that these resources be used only for the specific purposes as

provided in the legislation, This fund balance classification is used to report funds that

are restricted for debt service obligations and for other items contained in General

Municipal Law of the State of New York.

Committed fund balance is reported for amounts that can only be used for specific
purposes pursuant to formal action of the entity's highest level of decision making

authority, The Board of Trustees is the highest level of decision making authority for the

Village ihat can, by adoption of a resolution prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund

balance. Once adopted, these funds may only be used for the purpose specified unless

the entity removes or changes the purpose by taking the same action that was used to
establish the commitment. This classification includes certain amounts established and

approved by the Board of Trustees.

Assigned fund balance, in the General Fund, represents amounts constrained either by

policies of the entity's highest level of decision making authority or a person with

delegated authority from the governing board to assign amounts for a specific intended
purpôse. Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist temporarily, in that

additional action does not normally have to be taken for the removal of an assignment. An

assignment cannot result in a deficit in the unassigned fund balance in the General Fund.

Assigned fund balance in all other governmental funds represents any positive remaining
amount after classifying nonspendable, restricted or committed fund balance amounts.

Unassigned fund balance, in the General Fund, represents amounts not classified as

nonspendable, restricted, committed or assigned. The General Fund is the only fund that
would report a positive amount in unassigned fund balance. For all governmental funds

other than the General Fund, unassigned fund balance would necessarily be negative,

since tþe fund's liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, together with amounts

already classified as nonspendable, restricted and committed would exceed the fund's
assets and deferred outflows of resources.

ln order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted and unrestricted fund balance in
the governmental fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the

ordel in which the resources are considered to be applied. When both restricted and

unrestricted amounts of fund balance are available for use for expenditures incurred, it is
the Village's policy to use restricted amounts first and then unrestricted amounts as they
are needed. For unrestricted amounts of fund balance, it is the Village's policy to use fund
balance in the following order: committed, assigned and unassigned.
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F. Encumbrances

ln governmental funds, encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and
other commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve applicable
appropriations, is generally employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the
General and Capital Projects funds. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are generally reported
as assigned fund balance since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

G. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources and

disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, Estimates
also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

H. Subsequent Events Evaluation by Management

Management has evaluated subsequent events for disclosure and/or recognition in the financial
statements through the date that the financial statements were available to be issued, which date is
February 12,2016.

Note 2 - Stewardship. Compliance and Accountabilitv

A. Budgetary Data

The Village generally follows the procedures enumerated below in establishing the budgetary data
reflected in the financial statements:

Prior to December 20ih, the budget officer submits to the Village Clerk and the Village Board
of Trustees, a tentative operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following March
1st. The tentative budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing for
the General and Capital Projects funds.

The Board of Trustees conducts a public hearing on the tentative budget to obtain taxpayer
comments on or before January 1Sih.

After the public hearing and on or before February 1't, the Trustees meet to consider and
adopt the budget, at which time they are required to file the document with the Village Clerk.

Formal budgetary integration is employed during the year as a management control device
for the General fund.

The budget for the General Fund are legally adopted annually on a basis consistent with
generally accepted accounting principles. The Capital Projects Fund is budgeted on a
project basis.

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)
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Note 3,- Stewardship. Compliance and AccountaÞiliW (Continued)

0 The Board of Trustees has established legal control of the budget at the function level of

expenditures, Transfers between appropriation accounts, at the function level, require

apþroval by the Board. Any modification to appropriations resulting from an increase in

revenue estimates or supplemental reserve appropriations also require a majority vote by

the Board.

Appropriations in the General Fund lapse at the end of the fiscal year, except that

ouistanding encumbrances, if any, ere reappropriated in the succeeding year pursuant to

the Uniform System of Accounts promulgated by the Office of the State Comptroller.

Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the Board of Trustees.

s)

Property Tax Limitation

The Village is permitted by the Constitution of the State of New York to levy taxes up to 2o/o of the

five year average full valúation of taxable real estate located within the Village, exclusive of the

amount raised for the payment of interest on and redemption of longterm debt. ln accordance with

this definition, the maximum amount of the levy for the 2015 fiscal year was $88,399,007 which

exceeded the actual levy by $45,741,405.

On June 24, 2011, the Governor signed Chapter 97 of the Laws of 2011 ("Tax Levy Limitation

Law"). This applies to all local governments.

The Tax Levy Limitation Law restricts the amount of real property taxes that may be levied by a

Village in a farticular year. The original legislation that established the Tax Levy Limitation Law

was-set to expire on June 16, 2016. Chapter 20 of the laws of 2015 extends the Tax Levy

Limitation Law through June 2020.

The following is a brief summary of certain relevant provisions of the Tax Levy Limitation Law.

The summary is not complete añO the full text of the Tax Levy Limitation Law should be read in

order to understand the details and implementations thereof.

The Tax Levy Limitation Law imposes a limitation on increases in the real property tax levy, sYbjecl

to certain exôeptions, The Tax Levy Limitation Law permits the Village to increase its overall real

property tax levy over the tax levy of the prior year by no more than the "Allowable Levy Growth
'Faitor,; 

which ¡i tne lesser of one and two-one hundredths or the sum of one plus the lnflation

Factor; provided, however that in no case shall the levy growth factor be less than one' The

"lnflation Factor'' is the quotient of: (i) the average of the National Consumer Price lndexes

determined by the United States Department of Labor for the twelve-month period e_nding six

months prior io the start of the coming fiscal year minus the average of the National Consumer
price lndexes determined by the United States Department of Labor for the twelve-month period

ending six months prior to ihe start of the prior fiscal year, divided by (ii) the average of the

Natioñal Consumer Þrice lndexes determined by the United States with the result expressed as a

decimal to four places. The Village is required to calculate its tax levy limit for the upcoming ye_ar 
in

accordance with the provision above and provide all relevant information to the New York State

Comptroller prior to adopting its budget. The Tax Levy Limitation Law sets forth certain exclusions

to thå real property tax ievy limitatioñ of the Village, including exclusions for certain portions ofjhe
expenditures for rótiremeni system contributions and tort judgments payable by the Village' The

Viliage Board of Trustees may adopt a budget that exceeds the tax levy limit for the coming fiscal
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year, only if the Village Board of Trustees first enacts, by a vote of at least sixty percent of the total

úoting pówer of the Vittage Board of Trustees, a local law to override such limit for such coming

fiscalyear.

c. Capital Projects Fund Project Deficits

The unassigned deficit in the Capital Projects Fund of $530,327 arise because of the application of

generally aõcepted accounting principles to the financial reporting of such funds. The proceeds of

bonO ani¡cipation notes issued to finance construction of capital projects are not recognized as an

"other ¡nancing source". Liabilities for bond anticipation notes are accounted for in the Capital

Projects Fund. Bond anticipation notes are recognized as revenue only to the extent that they are

redeemed. These deficits will be reduced and eliminated as bond anticipation notes are redeemed

from interfund transfers from other governmental funds or converted to permanent financing.

Prior Period Adjustments

The Village, during the 2014-15 fiscal year, determined that depreciation expense and related

accumulaled depreciation had been incorrectly calculated in the government-wide and Water Fund

statements of net position. As a result, prior period adjustments in the amounts of $2,196,553 and

$1 39, 1 26 were necessary.

The Village, during the 2014-15 fiscal year, determined that amounts due to New York State under

the retirement stabil¡zation program were understated in the government-wide, Water and Electric

funds. As a result, priorperjoOãOjustments in the amounts of $2,049,717, $131,864 and $564,619
were necessary.

The Village, during the 2014-15 fiscal year, determined that Electric Fund regulatory lia,bllities

relating to transmiséion congestion contracts (TCC's) were overstated in the amount of $674,352,

The Village, during the 2014-15 fiscal year, determined that deferred tax revenues in the General

Fund were not reversed on the government-wide statement of net position. A prior period

adjustment in the amount of $654,458 was recorded as a result'

Total prior period adjustments are summarized as follows:

Fund Level

Government-
Wide Water Electric

Net Position/Fund Balance, as reported $ (57,560,826) $ 9,411,771 $ 11,168,741

Accum ulated depreciation
Pension obligation
Regulatory liabilities
Deferred tax revenues

Total Prior Period Adjustments

Net Position/Fund Bafance, as restated

(1 39, I 26)
(131,864) (564,619)

674,352
654,458

(3,591,812) (270,990) 109 733

(2,196,553)
(2,049,717)

40
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Note 2 - Stewardship. Compliancq and Accquntabilitv (Gontinued)

Departure from Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

Due to the nature and signficance of the relationship between the Village and the Agency, GASB

Statement No. 61 requirãs that the discretely presented component unit be included within the

financial statements of the primary government to be in conformity with generally accepted

accounting principles. As of the date of this report the financial statements of the Agency were not

available and as such have been omitted.

Note 3 - Detailed Notes on All tunds

A. Due From/To Other Funds

The balances reflected as due from/to other funds at February 28,2015 were as follows

Due From Due To

Governmental Activities
General
Capital Projects

Business{ype Activities
Water
Electric

_q_j_o,920,845_

$ 5,437,310 $
3,190,270

1,605,692
p87,573

$ 10,920,845

4,929,449
2,827,489

1,888,230
1,275,677

B.

The outstanding balances between funds results mainly from the time lag between the dates that

1) interfund góods and sêrvices are provided or reimbursable expenditures occurred,2)
transactions are recorded in the accounting system and 3) payments between funds are made.

CapitalAssets

Changes in the Village's capital assets are as follows

Class

Balance
March 1,

2014
As Reported

Prior Period

Balance
March 1,

2014
As Restatêd

Balance
February 28,

2015

Governmental Activities:

Cap¡tal Assets, not being dopreciated
Land
Construction-i n-progress

Total Capitâl Assets, not
being depreciated

$ 3,749,750
I 59.1 58

$ $ 3,749,750
1 59,1 58

Additions Delet¡ons

$ $ 185,000

, J 5s,1 58
$ 3,564,750

469,398469,398

$ 3,908,908 $ $ 3,908,908 $ 469.398 _$.*___9i3ff!_ $4, 034.148
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Balance
March I,

2014
As Reported

Prior Period
Adjustment

Balance
March 1,

2014
As Restated

$ 13,567,717 $

16,503,492
14,065,340

1 ,1 04,320

Balance
February 28,

Add¡tions Deletions 20 15
Class

Capital Assets, being deprec¡ated
Build¡ngs
lmprovements Other Than Buildings
Machinery and Equipment
lntâng¡bles - software
lnfrastructure

Total Capital Assets,
being depreciated

Less Accumulatôd Deprec¡ation for
Buildings
lmprovements Other Than Bu¡ldings

Machinery and Equ¡pment
lntangibles - software
lnfrastructure

Total Accum ulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets, being
depreciated, net

Governmentâl Capital Assets, net

113 15

58,668,797

(20,885)
(229,316)
(4e2,255)

57,504
2,881,505

2,1 96,553

$ 54,809,6'18 $ (2,196,553)

$ 58,718,526 $ (2,196,553)

113,478,415 2,060,335 84,823 115.473,927

$ 13,567,717
16,503,492
14,022,282

1,147 ,378
68,237,546 68 546

177,744
125,413
410,220
108,298

1,238,660

$ 13,745,461
16,628,905
14,410,737
1,212,618

69,476,206

7,835,690
9,1 57,986

1 I ,359,318
403,787

36,01 s,942

$ $

43.058
(43,058)

64,823

7,428,099
8,761,705

11,337,030
229,476

30,912,487

7,407,214
8,532,389

10,844,77 5

286,980
33,793,992

428,476
625,597
579,366
1 16,807

2,221,950

64,823

60,865,350 196 64,823 o4, 723

_q___q?ÉlEgs_

$ 56,s21,973

$ (1 ,91 1 ,861)

s__fr,442A93)-

$-
$ 344,158

$ 50, 204

$ s4, 352

Balance
March 1,

2014 Prior Period
Adjustment

Bâlânce
March 1,

2014
As Restated Additions Deletions

Balânce
February 28,

5Class As

Water Fund
Cap¡tal Assets, not being depreciated

Land

Capital Assets, being depreciated
Buildings
lmprovements Other Than Buildings
Machinery and Equipment
lnfråstructure

Total Capital Assets,
boing depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation for
Buildings
lmprovements Other Than Buildings

Mach¡nery and Equipment

lnfrasiructure

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets, being
deprec¡ated, net

Water Fund
Capital Assets, net

$ 85,981 $ $ 85,981 $- $

$ 9,447,075 $
2,003,967

832,668
19,685,634

$

22,869

$ 85,981

$$ 9,447,075
2,003,967

832,668
19,685,634

$ 9,447,075
2,003,967

855,537
19,685,634

31,969,344 31,969,344 22.A69 31, .1

1,748,947
703,605

768,737

9,782,841

1 1 0,356
(20,758)

(5, 1 8e)

54.717

1,859,303
682,847
763,548

.558

185,225
1 00,1 98

18,511

451,583

2,044,528
783,045

782,059

10,289,141

I 3,898,773

$ 18,093,440

130 139,126 1 3,1 43 256 755.517

$ 18,965,214 $(1 39.1 26) $ 18,826,088 $ (732,648) $

$(1 3S. 1 26) $ 18,179,421$ 19,051,195

42

$ 18,912,069 $ (732,648) $
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Balance
March 1,

2014
As Reported

Prior Period
Adjustment

Balance
March 1,

2014

4s Restated

Balance
February 28,

Class Additions Deletions 5

Electric Fund
Capltal Assêts, not belng depreclated

Land
Construct¡on-in-progress

Total Capital Assets, not
being deprec¡ated

Capital Assets, being depreciated
Buildings
lmprovêments Other Thän Bulldlngs
Machinery and Equipment
lnfrastructure

Total Capital Assets,
being depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation for
Buildings
lmprovements Other Than Buildings
Machinery and Equipment
lnfrastructure

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets, being
depreciated, net

Electrlc Fund
Capital Assets, net

$ 357,665 $ $ 357,665 $ s 249,795
-$____10?,8,?_0*

$ $ 11,832,927

1 06,395,902493,742

493,742 118,228,829

$ 84,239
273,42ts

$ 11,832,927

1 06,1 00,025

5,549,157-

43,s37,276

$ e $ $84,239 $
273,426 795

84,239
23,631

$ $ 11,832,927 $

1 06,1 00,025 789,619

117,932,952 117,932,952 789.619

5,945,157-

43,537,276

93,570

2,903,534 493,742

6,042,727-

45,947,068

49,486,433 2,997,104 493,742 51,989,795

$ 68,446,519 $ $ 68,446,519 s (2,207,485) $

6 249,755 $

i__qq?æ,031_

904$ 68,804,184 $ $ 68,804,184 $ (2,207,485)

Depreciation expense was charged to the Village's functions and programs as follows:

Governmental Activities:
General Government Support
Public Safety
Transportation
Culture and Recreation
Home and Community Services

Total Depreciat¡on Expense -

Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities:
Water Fund
Electric Fund

Total Deprec¡ation Expense -
Business-Type Activities

$ 170,805
611,321

1,838,332
708,243
643.496

$_3-97¿190

$ 755,517

" 2.e97.104
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Note 3 - Detailed otes on All Funds (Continued)

C. Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities at February 28,2015 were as follows

Governmental
Activities

Business-
Type

Activities Total

Payroll and employee benefits
Other

ERS

$ 142,597
239,728

$ 382,325

$ 142,597
249,002

$
274

$ 9,274 $ 391,599

I

Total Accrued Liabilities

D. Pension Plans

The Village participates in the New York State and Local Employees' Retirement System ("ERS")

and the New York State and Local Police and Fire Retirement System ("PFRS") ("Systems"). These
Systems are cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans. The Systems provide

retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members, Obligations of employers and employees
to contribute and benefits to employees are governed by the New York State Retirement and Social
Security Law. The Systems issue a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for the Systems, That report may be obtained
by writing to the New York State and Local Employees'Retirement System, 110 State Street,
Albany, New York 12224.

Funding Policy - The Systems are non-contributory except for employees in tiers 3 and 4 that
have less than ten years of service, who contribute 3% of their salary, employees in tier 5 who
also contribute 3% of their salary without regard to their years of service and employees in tier 6
who contribute between 3% and 6% depending on salary levels and also without regard to years
of service. Contributions are certified by the State Comptroller and expressed as a percentage of
members' salary. Contribution rates are actuarially determined and based upon membership tier
and plan. Contributions consist of a life insurance portion (GTLI) and regular pension contributions.
Contribution rates for the plans' year ended March 31, 2015 are as follows:

Tier/Plan Rate

2 751
3 Ê.14
4 Ê'15
5 415
6 A15

25.3
20.3
20.3
16.6
10.9

27.6
22.3t26.3
15.4
15.6

o/o

2 3848
5 384E
6 384D
6 384E

PFRS

44
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Contributions made to the Systems for the current and two preceding years were as follows

ERS PFRS

2015
2014
2013

$ 2,350,851
2,629,230
2,001,844

$ 2,994,695
3,350,545
3,042,194

128
266

32

These contributions were equal to 100% of the actuarially required contributions for each
respective fiscal year.

The current PFRS contribution for the Village was charged to the General Fund. The current ERS

contributions were charged as follows: $1,206,393 to the General Fund, $246p26 to the Water
Fund and $898,432 to the Electric Fund.

E. Length of Seruice Awards Programs

Fire Service Awards Program

The Village, pursuant to Article 11-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New York and

legislative resolution, has established a Service Awards Program ("Program") for volunteer
firefighters. This Program is a single employer defined benefit plan established as a grantor/rabbi

trust and, as such, the assets are subject to the claims of the Village's general creditors. Ïhe
Program is accounted for in the Village's financial statements within the Agency Fund. Active
volunteer firefighters, upon attainment of age 18, and upon earning 50 or more points in a calendar
year after 1990 under the provisions of the Program point system, and who have completed one
year of firefighting service are eligible to become participants in the Program. Participants âre fully
vested upon attainment of entitlement age, upon death or upon general disablement and after
earning five years of service credit. A participant, upon attainment of entitlement age (the later of
age 65 or the participant's age after earning 50 program points), shall be able to receive their
service award, payable in the form of a ten-year certain and continuous monthly payment life

annuity. The monthly benefits are $20 for each year of service credit, up to a maximum of 30
years. The benefits and refunds of the plan are recognized when due and payable in accordanoe
with the terms of the plan. The Program also provides disability and death benefits. The trustees of
the Program, which are the members of the Village's Board, are authorized to invest the funds in
authorized investment vehicles. Administrative costs are paid by the Village from the General
Fund.

Current membership in the Program is comprised of the following at December 31,2014

Gro

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Active
I nactive/term inated non-vested
Terminated members entitled to but not yet

receiving benefits
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The Village is required to contribute the amounts necessary to finance the plan as actuarially

determined using the attained age normal frozen initial liability cost method. The net pension

obligation is not ámortized on a separate basis. The assumed investment rate of return is 6% and

there are no cost of living adjustments.

F. Short-Term Capital Borrowings

The schedule below details the changes in short-term capital borrowings

Original
lssue Mâturity lnterest
Date D.ate Rate

Balance
March 1,

2014
New

lssues RedemDtions

Balance
at

Februarv 28, 2015

Governmental Funds
Emergency repa¡rs, improvement$ to
water and sewer system

Acquisition of street sweeper
lnstallât¡on of storm water treatment devices
Various public improvements
Purchase of replacement motor vehicles
and equipment

ReconstructÌon and repaving of roads including

reconstruction and replacement of water
mains and sewer lines

Rehab¡litation, renovation, improvement
and equipping of fire department buildings
and facil¡t¡es

Acquisit¡on and ¡nstallat¡on of multiple
space parking meters

Acquisition, programming and installation
of rad¡o equipmenl

Planning and construction of water trails
Acquisition and installation of police cameras

and l¡cense plate readers
Various publ¡c improvements

510612014

5t06t2014
5to6t2014
5t06t2014

5t06t2014

5to8t2014

2t10t2015

2t10t2015

2t10t2015
2t1012015

2t10t2015
211012015

31 5,000
77,000

465,000
1 68,300

1,210,000

2,649,500

400,000

65,000

95,000
75,000

315,000 $
77,000
30,000
78,300

5t06t2015
5t06t2015

5t06t2015

5t0612015

2t10t2016

2t10t2016

2t10t2016

2t10t2016
2t10t2016

435,000
90,000

1,050,000

2,649,500

300,000

ô5,000

60,000

o/o $ $ $

Total

Business-tvoe Activities - Water Fund

Reconstruction and repaving of roads
¡nclud¡ng the reconstruction and

replacement of wâter and sewêr lines

Reconstruction and repaving of roads
including the reconstruct¡on and

replacement of water and sewer lines

Total

5ljel2014 510612015 1'25 o/o 1,37ô,500

211012015 158,000

s 1,534,500

160.000

1 00,000

I 58,000

-$---------:- -$-lÉ99!99- $

1.25
1,25

1.25

1,25

1.25

1.25

1.25

1.25
1.26

35,000
75,000

- 255,000 - 255,000

$ 5,519,800 s 527,000 $ 870,300 5,1 7ô,500

1,240,000 I 36,500

1 36,500

Liabilities for bond anticipation notes are generally accounted for in the Capital Projects Fund. Bond

anticipation notes issued for judgments or settled claims are recorded in the fund paying the claim.

Principal payments on bond anticipation notes must be made annually. State law requires that bond

anticipation notes issued for capital purposes of judgments be converted to long{erm obligations
generally within five years after the original issue date.

lnterest expenditures/expense of $73,668 was recorded in the General Fund and the Government-
wide financial statements for governmental activities. lnterest expense of $6,253 was recorded in

the Water Fund,
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G. Long-Term Liabilities

The following table summarizes changes in the Village's long{erm indebtedness for the year ended
February 28,2015:

Balance
Mareh 1,

2014, as
Restated( 1)

New lssues/
Additions

Maturities
and/or

Balance
February 28,

2015

Due
Within

One-YearPaym ents

Governmental Activities
Bonds payable

Unamortized premium on bonds

Bond anticipation notes payable
Claims Payable
Tax certiorari payable

Compensated aþsences
Pension obligations
Other post employment benefit

obligations payable

Governmental Activities
Long-Term Liabilities

Business-Type Activities
Bonds payable

Unamofiized premium on bonds

Loans payable
Compensated absences
Pension obligations
Other post employment benefit

obligations payable

Business - Type Activities
Long-Term Liabilities

$ 48,510,259
161,358

$ 12,948,003
495.410

$ 12,916,119 $ 48,542,143 $ 5,547,454
85 395 571 373

48,671,617 13,443,413 13,001,511 49,113.516 5,547,454

5,500,000
6,320,939
6,614,942

17,665,329
4,671,012

3,770,000
1,039,562

962,432
2,410,025
1,042,740

5,500,000
6,246,298
2,856,756

746,695
710,996

3,770,000
1,114,243
4,720,618

19,328,659
5,002,756

3,770,000
11 1,000
472,000

1,932,000
654,355

35,827,443 7,117,055 2,670,607 40,273,891

$ 125,271,282 $ 29, 785,227 $ 31,732,866 $ 123,323,643 $ 12, 486,809

$ 69,589,748
2,463,260

$ 2,466,997 $ 5,553,888
142,578

$ 66,502,857

. 2,413,857

68,916,714

$ 4,367,546

93 175

72, 2,560,172 5,696,466 4, 367.546

62,305
2,764,240
1,551,857

337,618
305,222

62,305
168,809
157J20

2,933,049
1,699,959

293,000
180,741

10,57'1.,552 2,341,023 86'r,324 12,051,251

$ 87,002,962 $ s,544,035 $ 6 024 $ 85,600,973 $4, 841.287

(1) See Prior Period Adjustments Note 2,D.

Each governmental fund's liability for compensated absences and claims payable are liquidated by

the respective fund. The Village's indebtedness for bonds, loans, bond anticipation notes, pension

obligations, tax certiorari payable and other post employment benefit obligations is satisfied by the
General Fund or the appropriate Proprietary Fund.
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Bonds Payable

Bonds payable at February 28,2015 are comprised of the following individual issues:

Year of
lssu,e

2005
2005
2006
2008
2008
2008
2011
2011
201 1

2012
2013
2014
2014

Original
lssue Final

7t1512025
5t0112018
8t01t2016
5t01t2025
510112023

10t1512028
510112022

3t15t2018
6t0112024
'v1512032
510112022

5t021202e
st0312024

Maturity Rates
lnterest Govêrnmental

Business - Tvoe Activities
Water Electric
Fund Fund Totâl

PurDose

2005 Series A
2005 Refunding
2006 Tax certiorâris
2008 Series A
2009 Series B

2008 Series C

2011 Series A
2011 Seriês A- Refunding
2011 Series B - Refunding
2012 Series A- Refunding
2013 Ser¡es A
2014 Ser¡es A
2014 Ser¡es A - Refunding

14,275,000
11,615,000

1,000,000
23,693,927
2.715,000
3,515,000
4,680,000
4,565,000
8,350,000

48,680,000
5,965,000
6,925,000
8,490,000

4.0004.250 %
3.375-5.000

4.500
4.000-4.250
5.750-5.875
4.750-5.000
3.000-3.625
1.500-2.250
1.500-4.000
2.000-5.000
1.000-2.000
2.000-3.000
2.000-5.000

4,508,463
1 ,1 19,000

250,000
12,642,161

4,560,098
368,000

952,879

735,000
382,31 1

1,583,245

1,1 23,000

261,439
3,728,000

3,974,960
1,940,000

981 .5101,893,490
2,900,000
2,000,093
4,125,933

740,000
5,415,000
5,802,000
7.146,003

9,330,000
5,215,000

250,000
17,570,000

1,940,000
2,875,000
3,635,000
2,475,000
6,840,000

44,085,000
5,415,000
6,925,000
8.490.0001, 1 37.849

92,596
1,130,822

43,345,000

206,148

lnterest expenditures/expense of $4,500,011 was recorded in the fund financial statements, as

detailed below. lnterest expense of $1,719,236 was recorded in the government-wide financial

statements for governmental activities.

Fu Amount

$ '143 $ 10,842,382 $ 55.660.475 $ 115,045,000

$ 1,686,449

454,906
2.358,656

$____4J00._u_1

Loan Payable

The Village entered into a long term financing agreement with New York Power Authority

('NYPA') ón July 7 , 2014 to finance the cost of a Hybrid Electric Budget truck. This loan is non-

interest bearing and is payable in equal monthly installments of $5,200 with maturity scheduled

for April 2015. The loan balance was satisfied in 2015'

Governmental Funds
General

Proprietary Funds
Water
Electric
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Bond Anticipation Notes Payable

The schedule below details the changes in bond anticipation notes payable

Original
lssue Maturity lnterest
Date Date Rate

Balance
March 1,

2014

$ 4,000,000 $

1,500,000

New
lssues Redemptions

920,000
1,'t50,000
r,700,000

Balance
at

Tax c6rt¡orari/claims and judgments

Tax cert¡orari/claims and judgments
Tax certiorari/claims and jud gments

Tax certioraryclaims and judgments

Tax certiorari/claims and judgments

Total

Year Ending
February 28,

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

2021-2025
2026-2030
2031-2032

st06t2014
510612014
2t10t2015
2t10t2015
2t10t2015

5t06t2015
5t06t2015
5t06t2015

0.67 o/o

1.50
1,00
1.00
1.00

$ 4,000,000
1,500,000

Februarv 28 2015

$

. r,lil:ll8
1,7!0,090

j__ï!! non j___ s ?7499_$ 5,500,000 S 3,770,000

The Village, pursuant to FASB guidance, has not recorded these liabilities in the fund financial

statemenis since it has demonstrated ability to consummate refinancing. The ability to

consummate refinancing was evidenced by obtaining permanent financing or a renewal of the

notes prior to the issuance of the financial statements.

lnterest expenditures/expense of $38,102 was recorded in the fund financial statements in the

General Fund and the government-wide financial statements for governmental activities.

Payments to Maturity

The annual requirements to amortize all bonded debt outstandlng as of February 28, 2015,

including interest payments of $30,096,857 are as follows:

Govern mental Activities
Bonds Payable

Princioal lnterest
on Notes bleBond

pal

$ 5,547,454
5,785,063
5,529,070
5,522,252
3,846,000

18,098,774
4,213,530

$ 1,666,475 $
1,410,721
1 ,215,369
1 ,029,013

870,427
2,397,078

218,467

3,770,000 $ 8,901

$ 48,542,143 $8, 807,550 -$_9,770,999_ $ 8,901
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und
Year Ending
February 28,

Bon

Business- Activities

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

2021-2025
2026-2030
2031-2032

$ 1,091,280 $
1,130,024
1,174,607
1,191,233

893,774
4,497,673

873,791

Bonds

$ 3,276,266
3,409,913
3,591,322
3,766,516
2,815,225

16,133,545
15,802,680
6,865,008

_q__55,960,4?5_

c u

lnterest

$ 2,263,496
2,141,270
1,977 ,395
1,805,604
1,647 ,814
6,047,835
2,908,597

381 900

$ 19,173,911

pal lnterest

385,601
333,889
295,016
255,282
219,946
592,318
24,443

$ 10,942,382 $ 2,106,495

Total

Year Ending
Februarv 28. Principal lnterest

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

2021-2025
2026-2030
2031-2032

$ 13,685,000
10,325,000
10,294,999
10,480,001
7,554,999

38,719,992
20,890,001

$ 4,324,473
3,885,880
3,487,780
3,089,899
2,738,187
9,037,231
3,151 ,507

6, 865,008 381 900

$ 1 18,815,000 $ 30,096,857

The above general obligation bonds, bond anticipation notes and loans are direct obligations of the

Village for which its full faith and credit are pledged and are payable from taxes levied on all taxable
real property within the Village.

Advance Refunding

During the 2015 fiscal year, the Village issued $7,146,003 in the General Fund, $1,137,849 in the
Water Fund and $206,148 in the Electric Fund in refunding serial bonds with interest rates ranging
from 2,0o/o to 5.070, depending on maturity. The proceeds were used to advance refund

$5,385,000 of outstanding 2004 refunding serial bonds bearing interest at a rate ranging from 3.5 -
5.0% and $3,475,000 of outstanding 2004 various purpose serial bonds, bearing interest at rates
ranging from 3,75 - 4.25o/o. The net proceeds of $7,527,763 (including $495,410 of issuance
premium and after $113,650 in underwriting fees and other issuance costs) in the General Fund,
net proceeds of $1,198,636 (including $78,883 of issuance premium and after $18,096 in

undenruriting fees and other issuance costs) in the Water Fund and net proceeds of 9217,161
(including $14,292 of issuance premium and after $3,279 in unden¡vriting fees and other issuance
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costs) in the Electric Fund were used to purchase U.S, Government securities. Those securities

were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service

paymenis on the bonds. As a result, the 2004 refunding serial bonds and 2004 serial bonds are

considered defeased and the liability for those serial bonds has been removed from the Statement

of Net Position. The reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying amount of the old debt by

$69,614 in the governmental activities, $13,055 in the Water Fund and $882 in the Electric Fund'

These amountsãnd the premiums are being amortized over the remaining life of the refunded debt.

The Village advance refunded the 2004 refunding serial bonds and 2004 serial bonds to reduce its

total deblservice payments over 10 years by $600,861 and to obtain a net present value economic
gain of $592,129. As of February 28, 2015, the refunded bonds have been called and are no longer

outstanding.

Prior-Year Defeasance of Debt

ln prior years the Village defeased general obligations serial bonds by placing the proceedt 9l
new bonds in an irrevãcable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old

bonds. As of February 28, 2015, the refunded bonds have been called and are no longer

outstanding.

Claims Payable

The governmenþwide statements reflect workers' compensation benefit and general liabilities,

which are based upon estimates of the ultimate cost of claims (including future claim adjustment

expenses) that have been reported, but not settled, and of claims that have been incurred but not

reported (IBNR's). The length of time for which such costs must be estimated varies depending on

the coverage involved. Because actual claim costs depend on such complex factors as inflation,

changes in doctrines of legal liability and damage awards, the process used in computing claim

liabilities does not necesõarily result in an exact amount, Claim liabilities are recomputed
periodically using a variety of actuarial and statistical techniques to produce current estimates that

reflect setilemenls, claim frequency and other economic and social factors. A provision for inflation

in the calculation of estimated future costs is implicit in the calculatlon because reliance is placed

both on actual historical data that reflects past inflation and other factors that are considered to be

appropriate modifiers of past experience.
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An analysis of the unpaid claim liabilities is as follows:

Workers' Compensation
Benefits

2015 2014

Balance - Beginning of Year

Provision for Claims and Claims
Adjustment Expenses

Claims and Claims Adjustment
Expenses Paid

Balance - End of Year $ 862,832 $ 691,439 -qi158'1oi*
$ 86,000 $ 69,000 $ 546,000::=æ

General Liability

2015 2014

$ 862,832 $ 842,656 $ 5,458,107 $ 4,380,111

1,039,562 859,247 2,291,996

(1,479.630) (839 .071) (4,766,668) (1,214,000)

$ 422,764

$ 42,000Due Within One Year

This amount has been recorded as an expense and liability in the government-wide financial

statements. Claims payable also includes an estimated liability of $4,720,618 for tax certiorari

refunds, which are not due and payable at year end. These amounts have been recorded as an

expense in the government-wide financial statements.

Compensated Absences

Village employees are granted vacation and sick leave and earn compensatory absences in varying

amoi¡nts, the ierms of wfr¡cn must comply with the current collective bargaining agreements. ln the

event of termination or upon retirement, an employee is entitled to payment for accumulated

vacation and sick leave, subject to certain limitations.

Estimated vacation, sick leave and compensatory absences accumulated by governmental and

business-type employees have been reported in the statement of net position. Payment of vacation

time and sick leave is dependent upon many factors; therefore timing of future payments is not

readily determinable. However, management believes that sufficient resources will be made

available for the payments of vacation, sick leave and compensatory absences when such

payments become dúe. As of February 28,2015, the value of accumulated vacation time and sick

leave for governmental and business{ype activities was $22,261,708,

Pension Obligations

The ERS and PFRS charges to participating governments increased significantly in 2003.

Consequently, the State Legislature enacted legislation in 2003 and 2004 that authorized local

governments to amortize a þortion of their respective contributions due in 2004,2005 and 2006

ãnd pay each of these obligations over a ten year period with interest at 5% per annum. Th9

Village elected to amortizã tfre maximum allowable ERS and PFRS contributions for each

respective year as noted in the table below.
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The State Legislature enacted Chapter 57 of the Laws of 2010. This chapter authorized local
governments, at their option, to amortize a portion of their respective ERS and PFRS contributions
beginning in 2010. The maximum amortization amount each year going forward will be determined
by the difference between each employer's effective contribution rate as compared to the System's
overall graded rate. The amortized amounts are to be paid in equal annual installments over a ten
year period, although amounts may be prepaid at any time. lnterest will be charged at rates which
approximate a market rate of return cn taxable fixed rate securities of a comparable duration and

will be adjusted annually. The Village has elected to amortize the maximum allowable ERS and

PFRS contributions in each of the fiscal years since this option was first offered which is outlined in

the table below.

2005
2005
2006
2006
2007
2011
2012
2012
2013
2013
2014
2014
2015
2015

ERS
PFRS
ERS
PFRS
PFRS
ERS
ERS
PFRS
ERS
PFRS
ERS
PFRS
ERS
PFRS

$$$

Original
Amount

Amortized

Current
Year

Payments
Balance

Due
Due Within
One Year

9,576
80,261
76,167
23,026
76,313
44,536
98,655
69,008

131 ,383
109,398
57,010
59,763

146,027
358,859

35,654
298,834
363,562
219,327
810,977
473,278

1,066,045
745,692

1,498,544
1,247,658

658,090
689 872

$ 51,069
125,501

9J20
76,440
72,540
21,930
73,555
42,926
95,781
66,998

126,737
105,519

9,576
80,261

156,141
156,621
598,1 91
349,098
877,272
613,647

1,371,807
1,142,139

658,090
689,872

9_8,612,419_ $ 969,1 16 $ 6,702,715 _q__F5,999_

The current year payments were charged to retirement expenditures in the funds identified below:

Fund ERS PFRS Total

General
Water
Electric

221,072
37,265

1 19,855

$ $ 489,92.4 $ 710,996
37,265

119 855

$ 378,192 $ 489,924 $
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Other Post Employment Benefit Obligations

ln addition to providing pension benefits, the Village provides certain health care benefits for retired

employees tlrrough ã single employer defined benefit plan. The various collective bargaining

agreements stipuiate the employees covered and the percentage of contribution. Contributions by

tnl Village may vary according to length of service. Substantially all of the Village's employees may

become-eligible for those benèfits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the Village.

The cost of retiree health care benefits is recognized as expenditure as claims are paid in the fund

financial statements.

The Village's annual other postemployment benefit ("OPEB') cost (expense) is calculated based on

the annuál required contribution, ("ARC'), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the

parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. GASB Statement No. 45 establishes standards for the

measurement, recognition and display of the expenses and liabilities for retirees' medical insurance'

As a result, reporting of expenses and liabilities will no longer be done under the "pay-as-!ou;$o

approach. lnsiead óf expensing the current year premiums paid, a per capita claims cost will be

deiermined, which will be used to determine a "normal cost", an "actuarial accrued liability", and

ultimately the ARC. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a

period not to exceed thirty years.

Actuarial valuations for OPEB plans involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and

assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. These amounts are subject to

continual revision as results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about

the future. Calculations are based on the OPEB benefits provided under the terms of the

substantive plan in effect at the time of each valuation and on the pattern of sharing of costs

between the employer and plan members to that point. ln addition, the assumptions and projections

utilized do not explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations on

the pattern of cost sharing between the employer and plan members in the future. The actuarial

calculations of the OPEB plan reflect a long{erm perspective'

The Village is required to accrue on the government-wide financial statements the amounts

necessary to finance the Plan as actuarially determined, which is equal to the balance not paid

by plan members. Funding for the Plan has been established on a pay-as-you-go basis. The

assumed rates of increase in postretirement benefits are aS follows:

Year Ended Pre- 65
Februarv 28, Rate

2015
2016
2017
2018+

o/o8.00
7.00
6.00
5.00

The amortization basis is the level percentage of payroll method with an open amortization

approach with 26 years remaining in the amortization period. The actuarial assumptions included

a 4o/o investment rate of return and a 2.5o/o annual payroll growth rate. The Village currently has

no assets set aside for the purpose of paying postemployment benefits. The actuarial cost

method utilized was the entry age normal method.
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lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
Februarv 28, 2015

Note 3 - Detailed otes on All Funds (Continued)

The number of participants as of February 28,2015 was as follows:

Business-tYPe Activities

Antir¡c Fmnlovees
Retired Employees

Governmental
Activities

226
192

Water Electric
Fund Fund

15
I

418 24

65
47

112

Business{voe Activities
Water ElectricGovernmental

Funds

$ 96,209,715

Funds F Total

Amortization Component:
Actuarial Accrued Liability as of March I ,2014
Assets at Market Value

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability

Covered Payroll (active plan members)

UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll

Annual Required Contribution
lnterest on OPEB obligation
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution

Annual OPEB Cost

Contributions Made

lncrease in Net OPEB Cost

Net OPEB Cost at February 28,2014

Net OPEB Cost at February 28,2015

$ 6,315,440 $ 25,20',1,393 $ 127,726É48

$ 96,209,715

$ 27,020,894

356.06%

$ 7,405,503
1,433,098

(.721.546\

7,117,055

(2,670,607)

4,446,448

$ 6,315,440 .201.393 sJn,?16+5ß_$25
$ 1,520,810 $ 6,825,e59 $ 35,36fÉq3::

415.27o/o 369.20%

$ 1,964,994
334,279

t401 561)

361.140/o

$ $

1,897 ,712

(676,488)

461,141
88,583

(106,413)

9,831,638
1,855,960

520.l

35,827 443

443,311

(184,83q)

258,475

2,214,582

1,221,224

9,458,078

(3.531.931)
+

5,926,147

.970

Fiscal
Year Ended
February 28,

$ 40,273,891

Annual
OPEB Cost

$ 2,4 73.057 _$-_9,q?8,19.1_ $

Percentage of
Annual OPEB

Cost Contributed

142

The Village's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contr¡buted to the plan and

the net OPEB obligation for the current and preceding year is as follows:

Net OPEB
Obligation

2015
2014
2013

37.34 Yo

33.87
30.73

$ 9,458,078
11,185,294
10,789,795

$ 52,325,142
46,398,995
39,002,597
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lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
Februarv 2015

Note 3 - Detailed Notes on All Fgnds (Gontinued)

H. Revenues and Expenditures

Charges in Lieu of Taxes

The proprietary funds of the Village do not pay property taxes on their facilities. lnstead, they make

paymenis to the General Fund in lieu of taxes. The amounts charged to the Water and Electric

fuhOs for the years ending February 28, 2015 were $ 1,344,150 and $3,807,000, respectively.

lnterfund Transfers

lnterfund transfers are defined as the flow of assets, such as cash or goods and services, without

the equivalent flow of assets in return. The interfund transfers reflected below have been reflected

as transfers:

Transfers ln
cap ital

Transfers Out
General

Fund
Projects

Fund Total

$ 458,300 $ 458,300
34,48034,480

$ 34,480 $ 458.300 $ 492,780

Transfers are used to move funds earmarked in the operating funds to fulfill commitments for

Capital Projects Fund expenditures and to move amounts in the Capital Projects Fund to the

General Funds as projects with remaining balances are completed.

l. Net Position

The components of net position are detailed below:

Net Investment in Capital Assefs - the component of net position that reports the difference

between capital assets less both the accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balance of

debt, excluding unexpended proceeds, that is directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or

improvement of those assets.

Restricted for Debt Seruice - the component of net position that reports the difference between

assets and liabilities with constraints placed on their use by Local Finance Law.

tJnrestricted - all other amounts that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or "net investment in

capitalassets".

General Fund
Capital Projects Fund
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lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
Februarv 28 2O15

Note 3 - Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued)

J. Fund Balances

2015

General
Fund

Capital
Projects

Fund Total

Nonspendable:
Long term receivables
lnventories
Prepaid expenditures

Total Nonspendable

Restricted:
Debt Service

Assigned:
Purchases on order:
General government support

Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

$ 1,529,080 $
379,298
368,658

$ t,529,080
379,298
3681659

2,277,0362,277,036

481 939 1,703,061 2,J 84,900

51 908

5,726i84

$ 8,536,963

(2,233,388)

_q_€geÉ¿p_

3,492,792

$ 8,006,636

51,908

Certain elements of fund balance are described above. Those additional elements which are not

reflected in the Statement of Net Position but are reported in the governmental funds balance sheet

are described below.

Long-Term Receivables represents funds set aside to indicate the long term nature of a receivable
related to; 1) a sale of property which is scheduled to be received in fiscal year 201612017 , and 2) a
receivable from a component unit that is not expected to be repaid within one year. The amount is

classified as nonspendable to indicate that funds are not "available" for appropriation or expenditure
even though they are a component of current assets.

lnventories in the General Fund have been classified as nonspendable to indicate that a portion of
fund balance is not "available" for expenditure because the asset is in the form commodlties and

the Village anticipates utilizing them in the normal course of operations.

Prepaid Expenditures has been established to account for the retirement expenditures made in

advance. Thie amount is classified as nonspendable to indicate that the funds are not "available"
for appropriation or expenditure even though they are a component of current assets.

Purchases on order are assigned and represent the Village's intention to honor the contracts in

process at year-end. The subsequent year's appropriations will be amended to provide authority to
complete the transaction.

Unassigned fund balance in the General Fund represents amounts not classified as restricted or
assigned. Unassigned fund balance in the Capital Prolects Fund represents a deficit in fund
balance.
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lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
Februarv 28. 2015

Note 4 - Summary Disclosure gf Siqnificant Continsencies

A. Litigation

The Village is involved in various claims and lawsuits, arising in the normal course of operations.

Management believes that any financial responsibility that may be incurred in settlement of such

claims and lawsuits would not be material to the Village's financial position.

The Village is also defendant in numerous tax certiorari proceedings, the results of which cannot be

determined at this time. Any future refunds resulting from adverse settlements will be funded in the

year the payments are made.

The Village is a defendant in an action brought by a claimant by Pro Se alleging that he was falsely

arrested by Village Police Officers for public lewdness. Plaintiff alleged raced based discrimination,

violation oÎ n¡s iivit rigfrts, defamation, slander, false arresVimprisonment, disruption of family

ties/relationships, emotional trauma and lost wages. The Village is actively defending all parties'

No provision of loss has been reflected in the financial statements as the outcome of this case

cannot be determined at this time.

Risk Management

The Village maintains a self-insurance risk management program for liability and casualty,
property damage, workers' compensation, disability and unemployment. The Village uses a third

party aáministrátor to manage the claims related to general liability and workers' compensation.

The Village is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft, damage and destruction of

assets; eirors and omissions; injuries to employees; life and health of employees; and natural

disasters. The Village maintains commercial insurance for property damage up to a maximum of

approximately $6a.ã million for the Electric Plant and $62.2 million for all other municipally owned
property, subject to deductibles ranging from $5,000 to $100,000 per occurrence. The Village

also purchases commercial insurance for general liability claims with coverage up to
approiimately 95 million in total with various limits per occurrence, subject to sub-limits up to $1

million.

The Village also maintains commercial insurance workers' compensation benefits with a $1

million pei occurrence and per employee policy limit, subject to retention of $1 million to $1.25
million per occurrence and per claim, up to a maximum of $50 million.

There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage as compared to the prior year,

and there were no settlements in excess of insurance coverage over the last three years.

The Village estimates its potential claims under its self-insurance risk management program after

consulting with outside piofessionals and legal counsel. The Village has recorded the liability for

these clalms in its government-wide financial statements. The estimated outstanding workers'

compensation and gLneral liability claims outstanding at February 28,2015 were $422,764 and

$691,439, respectively.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Concluded)
Februarv 28 2015

c

Note 4 - S.ymryraru Disc,losure of 9jgnificant Contingelrgies (Continued)

Contingencies

The Village participates in various Federal grant programs. These programs may be subject to
program compliance audits pursuant to the Single Audit Act. Accordingly, the Village's compliance
with applicable grant requirements will be established at a future date. The amount of expenditures
which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time although the
Village anticipates su¡ch amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Note 5 - Sqbgequent Events

The Village, on May 6, 2015, issued a $8,564,000 bond anticipation note to refinance a currently
outstanding bond anticipation note in the amount of $8,403,000 after $2,190,000 in principal payments and

including $2,351,000 of new money. The note is due on May 4, 2016 with interest at .53%.

The Village, in September 2015, issued refunding serial bonds in the amount of $8,390,000, the proceeds

of which will be used to retire $8,640,000 in serial bonds. The refunding bonds mature annually through
July 2025 and bear interest at rate ranging from 1-5o/o depending on maturity.

*****
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lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Required Supplementary lnformation - Schedule of Funding Progress
Other Post Employment Benefits
Last Three FiscalYears

Primary Government

Actuarial Unfunded
Actuarial
Accrued
Liabilitv

Funded
Ratio

Covered

Unfunded
Liability as a
Percentage
of CoveredValuation

Date
Value of
Assets

Accrued
Liabilitv

March 1,2014 $
March 1 ,2013
March 1,2012

$ 127,726,548
135,187,754
128,432,634

8 127,726,548
135,187,754
128,432,634

o/o $ 35,367,663
36,417,879
35,529,638

361.14 o/o

371.21
361.48
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lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

General Fund
Balance Sheet
February 28,2015

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents

lnvestments

Taxes receivable

Other receivables
Accounts, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $788,213
State and Federal aid
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Due from component unit

lnventories

Prepaid expenditures

TotalAssets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Due to component unit

Total Liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred tax revenues

Total Liabilities and
Deferred lnflows of Resources

Fund balance
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities, Deferred lnflows of
Resources and Fund Balance

699 4941

$

5 677 272

623 047

940,230
174,843

5,437,310
127,412

1,439.638

I 119 433

379 298

368 658

_$._1_6,86?,20?_

2,427,743
286,586

4,929,449
9,995

82.520

7,736,293

593.946

2,277,036
481,839

51,908
5 726 180

I 536 963

8,330,239
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lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
Year Ended Februa rv 28 2015

Original
Budget (1)

Final
Budget Actual

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES
Real property taxes
Other tax items
Non-property taxes
Departmental income
I ntergovernmental revenues
lnterfund revenues
Use of money and property
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
State aid
Federal aid
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government support
Public safety
Health
Transportation
Economic opportunity and development
Culture and recreation
Home and community services
Employee benefits

Debt service
Principal
lnterest
Refunding bond issuance costs

Total Expenditures

Deficiency of Revenues Over Expenditures

orHER FINANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
lnsurance recoveries
Sale of real property
Bond anticipation notes issued
Refunding bonds issued
lssuance premium
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources

Net Change in Fund Balance

FUND BALANCE
Beginning of Year

$ 42,657,602
6,008,521

979,000
7,306,170

3,000
1,088,000
1,261,069

987,000
't,800,000

1 ,500,133
75,000

1 16,200

$ 42,657,602
6,008,521

979,000
7,306,170

3,000
1,088,000
1,261,069

987,000
1,900,000
'1 ,500,133

75,000
1 16,200

$ 42,647,606
5,958,140
1,026,869
7,207,769

4,952
1,088,000
1,379,395
1,062,483
1,504,312
1,476,870

138,597
279.042

(9,996)
(50,381)
47,869

(e8,401)
1,952

1 18,326
75,483

(2e5,688)
(23,263)
63,597

11,799,257
19,593,235

3,350
2,462,902

141,619
3,359,807
3,889,265

16,450,102

14,399,855
19,599,735

3,350
2,561,002

141,619
3,546,209
3,445,1ô5

16,547,302

13,805,768
19,528,094

3,216
2,489,469

89,867
3,523,179
3,424,226

16,414,226

594,087
71 ,641

134
71,533
51,752
23,030
20,939

133,076

162 842

63,781,695 63,781,695 63,774,035 (7,660)

$

5,950,970
1,870,264

5,567,970
1,870,264

5,567,970
1,798,219

1 13,650
72,045

113 650

65 52 771 67 796 121 66,7I".884 1,038,237

(1,739,076) (4,014,426) (2,983.849) 1 030 577

450,000
13,400

1 ,150,000

450,000
'13,400

3,770,000
7,146,003

49s,410
(7,527,763)

25,000
(458,300)

595,043
357,873

3,770,000
7,146,003

495,410
(7,527,763)

34,480

145,043
344,473

25,000 9,480
(458,300)

1,638,400 3,913,750 4,4 12,746 498,996

(100,676) (100,676) 1,428,897 1,529,573

100 676 7 a07 390

$-

100,676

$

7 108 066

End of Year

(1) lncludes prior year encumbrances of $100,676 62

$ 8,536,963 -L--q¡q6'83-



lncorporated Village of Freeport, New Yor*

General Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Compared to Budget
Year Ended Februarv 28.2015

PROPERTY TAXES

OTHER TAX ITETS
lnterest and penalties on real property taxes
Payments in lieu of taxes

NON.PROPERTY TAXES
Non-property tax distribution from County
Utilities gross receipts tax

DEPARTMENTAL INCOME
Treasurer fees
Clerks fees
Attorney fees
Fire Department fees
Safety inspection fees
Public Works fees
Parking fees
Parking meter fees - non taxable
Other economic assistance and opportunity
Parks and recreation fees
Zoning and Appeals Board fees
Planning Board fees
Garbage fees
Sewer rent
Board of Architectural Review fees

INTERGOVERNiIENTAL REVENUES
Fire protection

$ 42.657.602 $ 42.657.602 $ 42.647.606 $

300,000
5.708.521

Original
Budqet

Final
Budqet

300,000
5.708.521

7.306,170

Actual

u1,924
5.616.220

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Neqative)

t9.9ÍÆ)

41,920
t92.301)

t50.38r )

88
47 781

47 869

6.008,521 6,008,521 5.958.140

119,000
860,C00

119,000 119,088
860 000 907 781

979,000 979 000 1.026.869o,
C¡)

2,000
20,000
50,000
63,250

5,500
250,000
235,000
1 13,000

9,000
2,036,230

10,000
12,000

4,490,190
5,000
5.000

2,000
20,000
50,000
63,250

5,500
250,000
235,000
113,000

9,000
2,036,230

10,000
12,000

4,490,190
5,000
5.000

7,377
27,073
38,543
59,2U
1A,722

255,842
306,930
114,M1

12,500
1,844,985

15,465
16,240

4,485,333
8,8&
4,220

5,377
7,073

(11,457)
(4,016)
5,222
5,842

71,930
1,441
3,500

(1s1,245\
5,465
4,240

(4,857)
3,864
(780)

7.306.170 207 769 (98.401)

95213.000 3.000

7

4.952

(Continued)



INTERFUND REVENUES

USE OF MONEY AND PROPERTY
lnterest earnings
Rentalincome

LICENSES AND PERMITS
Occupational licenses
Building permits
Other permits

FINES AND FORFEITURES
Justice court fines

STATE AID
Per capita
Mortgage tax
Public safety
Youth programs
Other

FEDERAL A,ID
Emergency Management Agency

MISCELLANEOUS
Refunds of prior yea/s expenditures
Local public safety grants
Other

TOTAL REVENUES

1.088.000

75,000
1.186.069

261 069

140,000
635,000
212.OOO

901,311
400,000

90,000
17,000
91.822

1.500.133

75,000

100,000

16 200

75,000
1,186,069

261 069

140,000
635,000
212 000

901,311
400,000

90,000
17,000
91.822

1 .500.133

75,000

100,000

16,200

168,878
1,210,517

1,379,395

153,725
il3,402
365.356

901,311
397,430
71,170

106 959

1.476.870

138,597

89,613
185,727

3,702

93,878
24.448

118 326

13,725
(e1,5eB)
153.356

75.483

1295.688)

(2,570)
(18,830)
(17,000)
15.137

t23.263)

63,597

(10,387)
185,727
(12.498\

162,U2

t7.660)

1,089,000 '1,088.000

987 000 987.000 1.062.483

1.800,000 1.800.000 1.504.312

o)Þ

116,200 116,200 279.O42

63 781 695 63,781,695 63 774 035



(This page intentionally left blank)



lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

General Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Compared to Budget (Continued)
Year Ended 2015

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
lnsurance recoveries
Sale of real property
Bond anticipation notes issued
Refunding bonds issued
lssuance premium
Transfers in

Original
Budqet

Final
Budqet

450,000 $
13,400

3,770,000
7,146,003

495,410

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)Actual

$ 4s0,000 $
13,400

1 ,150,000

595,043 $
357,873

3,770,000
7,146,003

495,410
34,480

145,043
u4,473

9.480

498,996

25,000 25 000

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES

899638 400 11 813 12.398.809'l

O)
or

$ 65.420.09s $ 75.681.508 S 76.172.844 $ 491.336



lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures and Other Financing Uses Compared to Budget
Year Ended February 28,2015

Actual

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

GENERAL GOVERNMENT SUPPORT
Village Board
Village Justices
Mayor
Comptroller
Audit
Treasurer
Purchasing
Assessor

E Vitlage Clerk
Attorney
Human resources
Elections
Public works
Public works adm inistration
Buildings department
Centralgarage
Central data processing
Unallocated insurance
Human services
Judgments and claims
Property loss
Taxes and assessment on property
Contingency

$

Original
Budget

Final
Budget

82,000 $
588,809
320,383
116,937
150,122
579,131
452,672
155,651
443,226
802,552
451,169

1,300
1,124,955

349,988
331,876
965,590
803,670
671,726

10,000
1,150,000

850,000
85,000

1,312,500

82,000 $
588,809
296,383
116,937
129,122
612,231
352,672
155,651
443,226
807,550
451,669

1,500
1,124,955

349,988
338,776
965,590
803,670
526,726

10,000
2,856,800
3,281,000

88,100
16,500

79,161 $
587,339
236,893

66,430
103,797
612,178
348,844
116,808
424,245
731,034
451,614

1,469
978,546
323,814
338,730
936,759
712,014
523,462

7,111
2,856,756
3,280,727

88,037

2,839
1,470

59,490
50,507
25,325

53
3,828

38,843
18,981
76,516

55
31

146,409
26,174

46
28,831
91,656

3,264
2,889

44
273

63
16,500

"11 799 257 14,399,855 13,805,768 594 087



PUBLIC SAFETY
Police
Traffic control
On-Street parking
Fire
Control of animals
Safety inspection
Disaster related repairs
Other

HEALTH
Nursing serv¡ces

TRANSPORTATION
Administration
Maintenance of streets
Snow removal
Street lighting
Facilities maintenance

ECONOTIC OPPORTUNITY AND DEVELOPiIENT
Publicity

CULTURE AND RECREATION
Community center
Arts council
Library
Recreation
Tennis
Playgrounds

19,593,235 19,599,735

3,350 3,350

17,058,271
69,956
79,417

1,174,734
200

1,082,492

128 165

2,800
716,473
175,300

1,420,310
148,019

2,839,435
20,000
41,700

1,400
3,000

454,272

16,908,271
69,956
81,317

1,174,734
200

1,082,492
149,400
133,365

2,800
716,473
201,400

1,441,310
199,019

2,890,437
20,000
41,700

1,400
3,000

589 672

16,995,905
62,270
81,272

1,152,497

1,073,806
149,320
123,O24

19,529,094

3,216

600
647,228
201,367

1,441,267
199,007

2,890,408
20,000
21,797

1,368

589,606

3,523,179

22,366
7,686

45
22,237

200
8,686

BO

10,341

71,641

134

2,200
69,245

33
43

71,533

51,752

19,903
32

3,000
66

23,030

12
O)\¡

29

2,462,902 2,561.002 2,489,469

141,619 141,619 89,867

3 359 807 3,546,209

(Continued)



lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

GeneralFund
Schedule of Expenditures and Other Financing Uses Compared to Budget (Continued)
Year Ended February 28,2015

Original
Budget

HOÈIE AND COTTTTUNITY SERVICES
Zoning
Planning
Sewer administration
Sanitary sewers
Refuse and garbage
Drainage
Composting

10,600 $
17,100
2,850

267,607
3,4æ,670

120,038
6,400

3,889,265

5,110,707
1,965,104
1,100,000

40,000
7,638,000

75,000
360,000
161.291

16,450,102

5,457,970
493,000

1,695,102
175162

10,600 $
17,100
2,850

301,107
2,979,670

125,838
8,000

3,445,165

4,915,707
1,685,'104
1,480,000

47,200
7,823,000

75,000
360,000
161.291

5,457,970
110,000

1,695,102
175.162
113,650

Actual

7,571 $
13,296

1,629
300,918

2,967,022
125,812

7,978

3,424,226

4,9'12,O84
1,681,027
1,479,630

47,177
7,822,728

351,310
120 270

5,457,970
110,000

1,686,449
111,770
113,650

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

3,029
3,904
1,221

189
12,648

26
22

20,939

3,623
4,O77

370
23

272
75,000

8,690
41,O21

133,076

8,653
63,392

Final
Budget

$

O)o E}IPLOYEE BENEFITS
Retirement
Socialsecurity
Workers' com pensation benefits
Unemployment benefits
Hospital and medical insurance
Union welfare benefits
Length of service award contributions
Other

DEBT SERVICE
Principal
Serialbonds
Bond anticipation notes

lnterest
Serialbonds
Bond anticipation notes

Refunding bond issuance costs

16,547,302 16,414,226

7,821,234 7,551,884 7,479,839 72,O45

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 65,520,771 67,796,121 66,757,884 1,038,237



OTHER FINANCING USES
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Transfers out

CapitalProjects Fund

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES

7,527,763 7,527,763

458,300458,300

7,986,063

$ 65,520,771 $75 782 1U $ ?4,743,947

7,996,063

$ 1,038,237

o)(o



lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Capital Projects Fund
Balance Sheet
February 28,2015

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents

lnvestments

Receivables
^ ^^^.,-¡^¡\uuuut il.li
State and Federal aid
Due from other funds

TotalAssets

LIABILITIES AND FUND DEFIC¡T
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Bond anticipation notes payable

Total Liabilities

Fund deficit
Restricted
Unassigned

Total Fund Deficit

Total Liabilities and Fund Deficit

$ 2,776,290

1, 467,269

o) 
^9743,123

3 190 270

3 26 090

_q_-7,.569,649_

248
95,739

2,827,489
5,176,500

9,099,976

1,703,061
(2, 233.388)

(530,327)

$ 7,569,649

$

70



lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Capital Projects Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Year Ende d Februarv 28.2015

REVENUES
State aid
Federal aid
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay

Deficiency of Revenues Over
Expenditures

orHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
Bonds issued
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources

Net Change in Fund Balance

FUND DEFICIT
Beginning of Year

End of Year

$ 939,076
134,648
27,150

1,100,874

1,838,801

(737,927)

412,000
458,300
(34,480)

835,820

97,893

(628,224)

$ (530,327)

71



lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Enterprise Fund - Water Fund
Statement of Net Position
February 28,2015

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and equivalents
lnvestments
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds
lnventories
Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Non-current assets
Costs to be recovered from future revenues
Non depreciable capital assets
Depreciable capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Total Non-Current Assets

TotalAssets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts on refunding bonds

L¡ABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Bond anticipation notes payable

Total Current Liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total Non-Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

$ 223,068
273,106

2,911,331
1,605,692

124,501
43 263

5, 180,961

2,473,057
85,981

18, 093.440

20,652,478

25,833,439

94,846

74,427
102,204

9,274
1,888,230

136 500

2,2 10,635

1 ,151 ,390
12,808,713

13 960 103

16,170,738

7,220,446
2 537 101

Total Net Position

72

$ 9,757,547



lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Enterprise Fund - Water Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in

Net Position
Year Ended Februarv 28,2015

OPERAT¡NG REVENUES
Charges for services
lnterest and penalties

Total Revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES
Power and pumping
Transmission and distribution services
Administrative and general
Depreciation and amortization
Charges in lieu of taxes

Total Operating Expenses

lncome from Operations

NON-OPERATTNG REVENUES (EXPENSES)
lnterest income
lnterest expense
Costs to be recovered from future revenues

Total Non-Operating Expenses

Change in Net Position

NET POSITION
Beginning of Year, as reported

Prior Period Adjustment

Beginning of Year, as restated

End of Year

$ 6,658,995
473,403

7,1q2,399

2,028,066
216,651

1,993,899
755,517

1, 344,150

6,338,283

794,115

25,335
(461 ,159)
258 475

(177,349)

616 766

9,411 ,771

(270,990)

9,140,781

S :,J57,547_

73



lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Enterprise Fund - Water Fund

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended Februarv 28,2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from charges for services
Cash payments for goods, services and compensation
Cash payments for interfund services used

Net Cash From Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Bonds issued
Principal paid on bonds
Principal paid on bond anticipation notes
lnterest paid on bonds
Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Net Cash From Capital and

Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments
lnterest income

Net Cash From lnvesting Activities

Net Change in Cash and Equivalents

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS

Beginning of Year

End of Year

RECONCILIAT¡ON OF INCOME FROM OPERATIONS TO NET CASH

FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
lncome from operations
Adjustments to reconcile income from operations to net

cash from operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable
Due from other funds
lnventories
Prepaid expenses
Aceounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Pension obligations
Compensated absences
Other post employment benefit obligations payable

Net Cash from Operating Activities

NON.CASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Refunding bonds issued
lssuance premium
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Refunding bond issuance costs

74

$ 7,299,166
(5,414,578)

t597.167)

.287.4211

1 ,123,000
(1,005,396)
(1,398,000)

(403,447)
(22,869)

.706.712\(1

(e5)

33525

25 240

(3e4,051)

617 119

$ 223,068

$ 794,115

755,517

166,768
(1,332,068)

15,565
(16,400)
(82,940)

9,274
746,983

19,923
(47,791)
258 475

1 287 421

1,137,849
78,883

(1,198,636)
(18,0e6)

$



lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Enterprise Fund - Electric Fund
Statement of Net Position
February 28,2015

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and equivalents
lnvestments
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
lnventories
Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Non-current assets
Costs to be recovered from future revenues
Regulatory deposit
Non depreciable capital assets
Depreciable capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Total Non-Current Assets

TotalAssets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts on refunding bonds

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Customer deposits
Regulatory liabilities
Unearned revenue

Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total Non-Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET POSIT¡ON
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

$ 3,714,190
4,555,439
5,917,595

687,573
3,494

2,753,074
212,360

17,843,725

9,578,194
506,687
107,870

66,239,034

76,431,785

94 510

791,0671

2,912,444
718,438

1,275,677
132,867

1,346,499
6,384,739

236,321

13 985

3,699,897
67,950,973

71 640,870

84,647,855

10,138,578
1 280 144

Total Net Position 75 $ 11,418,722



lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Enterprise Fund' Electric Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in

Net Position
Year Ended February 28,2015

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Power generation
Transmission and distribution
Street lighting and signal system
Customer counting and collection
Administrative and general
Depreciation and amortization
Charges in lieu of taxes
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Expenses

lncome from Operations

NON-OPERAT|NG REVENUES (EXPENSES)
lnterest income
lnterest expense
Costs to be recovered from future revenues

Total Non-Operating Expenses

Change in Net Position

NET POSITION
Beginning of Year, as reported

Prior Period Adjustment

Begirrrrirrg r¡f Year, as restated

End Year

$ 31,995,841
711 022

32 7 863

13,702,327
1,515,114

98,824
919,374

8,015,746
2,997,104
3,807,000

378 152

31,433,641

1,273,222

4,459
(2,358,656)
1,221,224

(1, 132,974\

140,248

11,168,741

109 733

11,278,474

$ 11,418,722

76



lncorporated Village of Freeport, New York

Enterprise Fund - Electric Fund
Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended Februarv 28.2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from charges for services
Cash received from interfund services provided
Cash payments for goods, services and compensation
Cash payments for interfund services used

Net Cash From Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Principal paid on bonds
Principal paid on loan
lnterest paid on indebtedness
Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Net Cash From Capitaland
Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments
lnterest income

Net Cash From lnvesting Activities

Net Change in Cash and Equivalents

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS

Beginníng of Year

End of Year

RECONCILIATION OF INCOME FROM OPERATIONS TO NET CASH
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

lncome from operations
Adjustments to reconcile income from operations to net

cash from operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
lnventories
Prepaid expenses
Regulatory deposit
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Customer deposits
Regulatory liabilities
Pension obligations
Compensated absences
Other post employment benefit obligations payable

Net Cash From Operating Activities

NON.CASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Refunding bonds issued
lssuance premium
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Refunding bond issuance costs

$ 31,560,819
2,339,705

(22,242,434)
(3,037,504)

8,620,586

(3,146,634)
(62,305)

(2,411,684)
(539,824)

160,447\

(2,253,704)
4.458

(2,249,246)

210,893

3,503,297

$ 3,714,190

g 1,273,222

2,997,104

1,066,094
(e1,443)
143,140
(3e,260)
(95,954)
139,962

(e80,086)
769,496
75,870

1,796,438
128,179
216,600

1,221,224

$ 8.620.586

206,148
14,292

(217,161)
(3,279)

77

$




